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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Level 3 Communications, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated balaneetstof Level 3 Communications, Inc. (a Delawampartion) and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related cdasedl statements of operations, cash flows, changteckholders' equity (deficit) and
comprehensive loss for each of the years in theetlyear period ended December 31, 2005. Theselatated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Oysarsibility is to express an opinion on these ctidated financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance stihdards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdigtard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on flasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by maregeas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated finan@tdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of
Level 3 Communications, Inc. and subsidiaries a@adfember 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results ofaperations and their cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period endegmber 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generalégepted accounting principles.

As discussed in note 1 to the consolidfitethcial statements, Level 3 Communications, &md subsidiaries adopted the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 1A8counting for Asset Retirement Obligations,feetive January 1, 2003.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdsoard (United States), the
effectiveness of Level 3 Communications, Inc.'sfinal control over financial reporting as of DecemB1, 2005, based on criteria establis
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issuedtiy Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@iway Commission (COSO), and
our report dated March 1, 2006 expressed an urggbtipinion on management's assessment of, aneffinetive operation of, internal
control over financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 1, 2006

F-2




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Level 3 Communications, Inc.:

We have audited management's assessmenged in the accompanying Management's Reponttamial Control Over Financial
Reporting that Level 3 Communications, Inc. maimegi effective internal control over financial rejimy as of December 31, 2005, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrakgdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirmgafizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Level 3 Communications, Incamagement is responsible for maintaining effeatiternal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigerd internal control over financial reporting.r@esponsibility is to express an opinion on
management's assessment and an opinion on théwdfexss of the Company's internal control oveariitial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withstandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management's assessment, testing ahatrg the design and operating effectivenessitafrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanagigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fioai reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsets that could have a material effect on thenfirz statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessmenkével 3 Communications, Inc. maintained effeciiviernal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in atenial respects, based on criteria establishéaténnal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in ounam, Level 3
Communications, Inc. maintained, in all materiapects, effective internal control over financgporting as of December 31, 2005, base
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrakgdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirmgafizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSOQ).

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdsoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Level 3 Communitgtimc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 26685804, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, cash flows, change®akisblders' equity (deficit) and comprehensive fossach of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2005, and our reportddéech 1, 2006 expressed an unqualified opiniothose consolidated financial
statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 1, 2006
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For each of the three years ended December 31, 2005

2005 2004

2003

(dollars in millions, except per share data)

Revenue
Communication: $ 1648 $ 168 $ 1,94
Information service 1,892 1,861 1,92(
Coal mining 74 91 80
Total revenu 3,61% 3,631 3,94
Costs and Expenses (exclusive of depreciation arattezation shown
separately below
Cost of revenue
Communication: 463 43¢ 37C
Information service 1,71 1,70¢ 1,77¢
Coal mining 53 67 58
Total cost of revenu 2,23: 2,20¢ 2,20¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 657 682 81:
Selling, general and administrati 912 947 1,02
Restructuring and impairment char 23 16 40
Total costs and expens 3,82t 3,85z 4,08¢
Operating Los: (212) (21¢€) (139
Other Income (Expense
Interest incomi 35 13 18
Interest expens (530) (48E) (567)
Gains on early extinguishment of dt — 197 41
Other, ne 28 39 (207)
Total other income (expens (467) (23¢€) (615)
Loss from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes Change in
Accounting Principle (679 (452) (7549
Income Tax Benefit (Expens (8) (6) 50
Loss from Continuing Operatiol (687) (45¢) (709
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatic 49 — (12
Net Loss Before Change in Accounting Princi (63¢) (45¢) (71€)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Princi — — 5
Net Loss $ (63¢) $ (45¢) $ (712
L] L] L]
Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock (Bagsidluted):
Loss from Continuing Operatiol $ (0.99) $ 0.67) $ (1.25)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatic 0.07 — (0.02)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Princi — — 0.01
Net Loss (0.9) (0.67) (2.2¢)
L] L] L]

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.

F-4






LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Marketable securitie
Restricted cash and securit

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2005 and 2004

Receivables, less allowances for doubtful accooh$23 and $23, respective

Other
Total Current Asset

Property, Plant and Equipment, |
Marketable Securitie

Restricted Cash and Securit
Gooduwill and Intangibles, ni
Other Assets, ne

Liabilities and Stockholders' Defic
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Current portion of lon-term debr
Accrued payroll and employee bene
Accrued interes
Deferred revenu
Other

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Debt, less current portit
Deferred Revenu

Other Liabilities

Commitments and Contingenci

Stockholders' Deficit

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 100@@shares: no shares outstanc
Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 1,5000@@shares: 817,767,818
outstanding in 2005 and 686,496,721 outstandirRpiv

Additional paic¢in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income (i

Accumulated defici

Total Stockholders' Defic

2005

2004

(dollars in millions, except per

share data)

$ 457 $ 44z
17€ 22t

33 48

83C 541

18€ 14F

1,671 1,40:
5,63¢ 5,37¢

234 114

72 67

532 457

122 12¢

$ 8271 $ 754
& |
$ 794 $ 60C
— 142

96 78

102 73

26€ 252

177 15E

1,43¢ 1,30z
6,02z 5,067

74¢ 84C

547 492

8 7

7,75¢ 7,371

(51) 19

(8,197) (7,55
(476) (157)

$ 8271 $ 754
| |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For each of the three years ended December 31, 2005

2005 2004 2003
(dollars in millions)
Cash Flows from Operating Activitie
Net Loss $ (636) $ (45¢) $ (711)
(Income) loss from discontinued operatic (49 — 12
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi — — (5)
Loss from continuing operatiol (687) (45¢) (709)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing opieres to net cash provided by (use
in) continuing operation:
Equity earnings — 3

Depreciation and amortizatic 657 682 81:

Induced conversion expense on convertible — 20C
Gain on debt extinguishmer — (197 (47)
Loss on impairments and asset si 9 — —
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment, Comaealth Telephone shares a
other asset 9) (39 (74
Non-cash compensation expense attributable to stockda 55 44 82
Deferred revenu (109) (67) (267)
Deferred income taxe — — (57)
Amortization of debt issuance co: 16 16 42
Accreted interest on discount d¢ 33 75 10€
Accrued interest on loi-term debt 30 27 25
Change in working capital items net of amounts aequ
Receivable! 471) 26 (28)
Other current asse (36) 8 48
Payables 11 (28) (56)
Other liabilities (26) (107) (48)
Other (29 (5) (11
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Continuing Operat (220) (77) 27
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketalolarites 584 70 —
Purchases of marketable securi (64¢) (410 —
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash and sexa 4 21 9
Capital expenditure (305) (273 (159)
Investments (20 — 2
WilTel acquisition, net of cash acquired of $1 (369) — —
Sprint acquisition, excluding g-assignment or assumption inco — (39 —
ICG acquisitior — (35) —
Genuity acquisitior — — (109)
Proceeds from sale of Commonwealth sh — 41 —
Proceeds from sale of toll road operati — — 46
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipnasm other investmen 11 29 57
Net Cash Used in Investing Activiti $ (741 $ (591 $ (152

(continued)
See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)

For each of the three years ended December 31, 2005

2005 2004 2003
(dollars in millions)
Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance c $ 924: % 98t $ 84¢
Payments and repurchases of -term debt, including current portic (130 (1,027) (772
Stock options exercise — — 3
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activil 813 (42 79
Discontinued Operations (Revis—See Note 1)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Discontinued Opega#fictivities ©)] 13 14
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activil 78 (6) 11
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activi (@) Q) —
Net Cash Provided by Discontinued Operati 74 6 25
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equi ()] 18 8
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival 9 (68€) (13
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of ® 443% 1,12¢ 1,14z
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of } $ 452 % 447 % 1,12¢
| I I
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informati
Cash interest pai $ 451 % 421 % 394
Income taxes pai 1 13 —
Noncash Investing and Financing Activitir
Common stock issued in exchange for long term $ — $ — $ 95&
Long-term debt principal retired by issuing common st — — 1,007
Accrued interest paid with common stc — — 10
Common stock issued for acquisitic 313 — 29
Long-term debt extinguished due to sale of toll roadrapens. — — 13¢
Settlement of debt obligation and current liakgktiwith restricted securitit 13 — 41C
Capital leases assumed in Genuity transar — — 30¢
Decrease in deferred revenue related to acquisi 2 — 76
Warrants cancelled in exchange for constructionices — — 2

See accompanying notes to consolidated financiédsients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Balances at December 31, 2(

Common Stock
Issued to extinguish loi-term debi
Stock options exercise
Stock plan grant
Shareworks pla
401(k) plan
Warrants cancelle
Telverse acquisitio

Net Loss

Other Comprehensive Incor

Balances at December 31, 2(C

Common Stock
Stock plan grant
Shareworks pla
401(k) plan
Convertible Note Hedge and Wa
Note 14)
Net Loss
Other Comprehensive Incor

Balances at December 31, 2(

Common Stock
WilTel acquisition
Stock plan grant
Shareworks pla
401(k) plan

Net Loss

Other Comprehensive Lo

Balances at December 31, 2(

For each of the three years ended December 31, 2005

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated
Stock Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total
(dollars in millions)

$ $ 6,27 $ (132) $ (6,389 $ (240
95C — — 95:¢

3 — — 3

57 — — 57

36 — — 36

14 — — 14

2 — — 2

29 — — 29

— — (711) (711)

— 42 — 42

7,36( (90) (7,096) 181

22 — — 22

34 — — 34

17 — — 17

rrant (See

(62) — — (62

— — (458) (45€)

— 10¢ — 10¢

7,371 19 (7,559 (157)

31z — — 313

37 — — 37

24 — — 24

15 — — 15

— — (63€) (63€)

— (70) — (70)

$ $ 7,75¢ $ (51) $ (8,197 $ (476
IEEEEEE——" S S S EE—

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

For each of the three years ended December 31, 2005

2005 2004 2003
(dollars in millions)
Net Loss $ (63¢) $ (45¢) $ (711
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before 1
Foreign currency translation adjustme (72 29 31
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on marketablaétggecurities and other arising during
period. (@D} 2 14
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) lossesudet in net los 3 82 (3)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before (70 10¢ 42
Income Tax Benefit Related to Items of Other Corhpresive Income (Los! — — —
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tz (70 10¢ 42
Comprehensive Los $ (70¢) $ (349) $ (669)
I I I
SUPPLEMENTARY STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT INFORMATION
Net Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustment Other Total
(dollars in millions)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Ic
Balance at January 1, 20 $ (119 $ (19 $ (132
Change 29 13 42
Balance at December 31, 2C (84) (6) (90
Change 134 (25) 10¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 50 (31) 19
Change (69) (@) (70)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 19 $ G2 $ ((B)
| |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements ithelthe accounts of Level 3 Communications, Inc.suissidiaries (the "Company"” or "Level
3") in which it has control, which are engageditegprises primarily related to communicationspiniation services, and coal mining. Fifty-
percent-owned mining joint ventures are consolidlate a pro rata basis. Investments in other congganiwhich the Company exercises
significant influence over operating and finangalicies or has significant equity ownership arecamted for by the equity method. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactiae been eliminated.

On December 23, 2005, Level 3 acquired @liCommunications Group, LLC and its operating glibges ("WilTel"). The financial
position, results of operations and cash flowshattable to WilTel are included in the consolidafedncial statements from the date of
acquisition. (See Note 2)

On November 30, 2005, Level 3 sold$tructure, LLC ("(i )Structure"), Level 3's wholly-owned IT infrastrucé management
outsourcing subsidiary to Infocrossing, Inc. ("lofossing™). In 2003, Level 3 sold Software Spectrimo.'s contact service business and the
Midwest Fiber Optic Network ("MFON") business aamui in the Genuity, Inc. ("Genuity") transactiomeTresults of operations and cash
flows for these businesses have been classifigisasntinued operations in the consolidated finalnstatements for all periods presented
Note 3).

Communications

The Company's communications business gesva broad range of integrated communicationscesrprimarily in the United States ¢
Europe as a facilitiebased provider (that is, a provider that owns asés a substantial portion of the property, pladtegquipment necesse
to provide its services). The Company has credhedugh a combination of construction, purchaselaasing of facilities and other assets
advanced international, end-to-end, facilities-dasemmunications network. The Company has built@rdinues to upgrade the network
based on optical and Internet Protocol technoloigiesder to leverage the efficiencies of thesémetogies to provide lower cost
communications services.

Revenue for communications services, indgrivate line, wavelengths, colocation, Interaetess, managed modem, voice, video anc
dark fiber, is recognized monthly as the servigespaovided based on contractual amounts expeotkd tollected. If, at the time services
rendered, collection is not reasonably assure@reithe to credit risk, the potential for billingsdutes or other reasons, revenue is not
recognized until such contingencies are resolvedifRocal compensation revenue is recognized ohlynaan interconnection agreement i
place with another carrier.

Certain sale and long-term IRU agreemehtiadk fiber and capacity are required to be acteaifor in the same manner as sales of real
estate with property improvements or integral emuépt. This accounting treatment results in therdaffef the cash that has been received
and the recognition of revenue ratably over thentef the agreement (currently up to 20 years).

Termination revenue is recognized whensaaruer discontinues service prior to the end otth@ract period, for which Level 3 had
previously received consideration and for whicheraye recognition was deferred. Termination revésa¢so recognized when customers
make termination penalty payments to Level 3 tdesebntractually committed purchase amounts tattustomer no longer expects to meet
or when a customer and Level 3 renegotiate a contrader which Level 3 is
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no longer obligated to provide services for consitlen previously received and for which revenumgmition has been deferred. Termina
revenue is reported in the same manner as thanaligervice provided, and amounted to $133 milliit,3 million and $346 million in 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively (See Note 4).

The Company is obligated under dark fillld$ and other capacity agreements to maintaireitsark in efficient working order and in
accordance with industry standards. Customerslaigated for the term of the agreement to pay lieirtallocable share of the costs for
operating and maintaining the network. The Compaepgnizes this revenue monthly as services anedwo.

Level 3's customer contracts require then@any to meet certain service level commitmentketfel 3 does not meet the required
service levels, it may be obligated to provide @sgdisually in the form of free service, for a ghgeriod of time. The original services that
resulted in the credits are not included in revesmu, to date, have not been material.

Cost of revenue for the communications messs includes leased capacity, right-of-way ca@stsess charges and other third party circuit
costs directly attributable to the network, as vaslicosts of assets sold pursuant to sales-typedelbut excludes depreciation and
amortization and related impairment expenses. Tdrefany also includes in communications cost of meeahe satellite transponder lease
costs, the package delivery costs and the blarkragalia costs attributable to the video business.

The Company recognizes the cost of netwerkices as they are incurred in accordance witkractual requirements. The Company
disputes incorrect billings from its suppliers etwork services. The most prevalent types of deputclude disputes for circuits that are not
disconnected by its supplier on a timely basisasabe bills with incorrect or inadequate informatiDepending on the type and complexity
of the issues involved, it may take several quari@resolve the disputes.

In determining the amount of these expeasésrelated accrued liabilities to reflect infitmncial statements, the Company consider
adequacy of documentation of disconnect noticesptiance with prevailing contractual requiremermtsgubmitting these disconnect notices
and disputes to the provider of the network ses/ie@d compliance with its interconnection agredameiith these carriers. Significant
judgment is required in estimating the ultimatecoute of the dispute resolution process, as welhgsother amounts that may be incurre
conclude the negotiations or settle any litigatidatual results could vary from the estimated antsatcrued for disputes.

The Company may periodically enter intoeggnents to acquire network assets from other teleamications service carriers. These
carriers may in turn acquire network assets fromel8. Transactions in which Level 3 transfers rekassets to and acquires network as
from the same third party at or about the same #iregeferred to as "contemporaneous transactidhgese transactions would generally be
recorded as non-monetary exchanges of similaraasébok value, as these transactions do notgepr¢he culmination of an earnings
process. Contemporaneous transactions do not reghk recognition of revenue. Net cash or othenetary assets paid or received in
contemporaneous transactions are recorded as astrmént to the book value of the transferred pityp@he adjusted book value becomes
the carrying value of the transferred propertynpnd equipment. The Company did not enter ingéseahtypes of agreements during the three
years ended December 31, 2005. Beginning Janu&@08, the Company will measure -monetary assets
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exchanges at fair value in accordance with SFAS1S88, "Exchanges of Non-Monetary Assets", ("SFAS Ns8").
Competition

The communications industry is highly cotitpee. Many of the Company's existing and potdrt@mpetitors in the communications
industry have financial, personnel, marketing atigtoresources significantly greater than thosth@fCompany, as well as other competitive
advantages including larger customer bases. Inedeaansolidation and strategic alliances in theistiy resulting from the
Telecommunications Act of 1996, the opening ofith8. market to foreign carriers, technological ates and further deregulation could
give rise to significant new competitors to the Qxamy.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company provides communications sesvioea wide range of customers, ranging from wegliitalized national carriers to smaller,
early stage companies. The Company has in pladeigsohnd procedures to review the financial caodibf potential and existing customers
and concludes that collectibility of revenue anlgeotout-of-pocket expenses is probable prior tactramencement of services. If the
financial condition of an existing customer deteates to a point where payment for services isoubd, the Company will not recognize
revenue attributable to that customer until cagkdgived. As a result of the WilTel acquisition2i@05, the total number of customers
increased to approximately 5,000 at December 305 24 significant portion of WilTel's revenue igrdiutable to SBC Services, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of AT&T Inc. ("SBC") and asresult, due to the credit worthiness of SBC,Gbenpany does not believe its overall
credit risk has increased significantly. The p@sand procedures for reviewing the financial ciowliand recognizing revenues of these
additional customers related to the WilTel acqigairemained consistent with those described abbive.Company has from time to time
entered into agreements with valagded resellers and other channel partners to maumer and enterprise markets for voice servides
Company has policies and procedures in place tluateathe financial condition of these reselleismto initiating service to the final
customer. The Company is not immune from the effe€the downturn in the communications industigyvbver, management believes the
concentration of credit risk with respect to reediles is mitigated due to the dispersion of the gamy's customer base among different
industries and geographic areas and remedies gablig the terms of contracts and statutes.

A significant portion of Level 3's commuatimns service revenue is concentrated among tetinmumber of customers. Revenue
attributable to Time Warner Inc. and subsidiariesluding America Online, amounted, on an aggregatas, to $288 million, $374 million
and $450 million for the years ended December 80522004 and 2003, respectively, representingaqpiately 8 percent, 10 percent and
11 percent of consolidated revenue for the respegears and is included within the Communicatisggment on the consolidated statements
of operations. If Level 3 would lose one or morganaustomers, or if one or more major customegsificantly decreased its orders for
Level 3 services, the Company's communicationsnigssi would be materially and adversely affected.

The Company's DSL aggregation services wengarily provided to a single customer on an egule basis in certain markets, which
exclusivity expired at the end of the first quat€P2005. The customer completed the migrationékisting DSL customers to its own
network during the third quarter of 2005.
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As part of the WilTel transaction, the Canp acquired certain contracts with SBC that regortesd approximately 66% percent of
WilTel's 2005 revenue. The Company expects SB(ta bignificant customer in 2006.

Information Services

The Company's information services busimefiscts the results of Software Spectrum, In8oftware Spectrum™), a global reseller of
business software. During 2005, the Company s@dther operating unit included in its informat®earvices businessj jStructure,
primarily a provider of computer outsourcing seedacThe financial position, results of operationd eash flows for {)Structure have been
classified as discontinued operations in the codatdd financial statements for all periods preseéree Note 3).

Software Spectrum is a global resellerusibess software, primarily to large and mediumnedizusinesses. Revenue is recognized as
either an agency fee, whereby sales under ceitainsing programs permit Software Spectrum to reizegonly a service fee paid by the
software publisher as revenue, or on a "gross'shiasivhich case the Company recognizes the fullevaf the software sold as revenue.
Accounting literature provides guidance to enableganies to determine whether revenues from thedlires of goods and services should
recorded on a "gross" or "net" basis. The Compaatig¥es that the facts and circumstances, partigutaose involving pricing and credit ri
indicate that the majority of Software Spectrumaltes should be recorded on a "gross" basis. Thedatand ability of Software Spectrum to
establish the selling price to the customer isnapoirtant indication of "gross" revenue reportingeTassumption of credit risk is another
important factor in determining "gross" versus "meporting. Software Spectrum has the respongitiit pay suppliers for all products
ordered, regardless of when, or if, it collectsirits customers. Software Spectrum is also sokdpansible for determining the
creditworthiness of its customers.

Microsoft Corporation, a significant sugplpf software to Software Spectrum, changed aeli@énsing programs in 2001 whereby new
enterprise-wide licensing arrangements are pricildd and collected directly by Microsoft. In 2QG3veral other suppliers, for whom
Software Spectrum resells products and serviceggrbadopting this type of program. Software Spectwill continue to provide sales and
support services related to these transactionsvihearn a service fee directly from the softwatelishers for these activities. Under this
licensing program, Software Spectrum only recognibe service fee paid by the software publishee@asnue and not the entire value of the
software. The Company continues to sell producteeumarious licensing programs, but beginning i@2Mas experienced an increase in the
level of sales under these new programs and maregempects further adoption of agency licensiragams in the future. If Microsoft and
other software publishers are able to successfullement and sell a significant amount of softwmanéer this program, or it is determined
that the accounting for reselling of the softwérewdd be recorded on a "net" basis, the Companyewpgrience a significant decline in
information services revenue, but will also expecea comparable decline in cost of revenue.

Microsoft is the primary provider of bus@sesoftware to the Company's Software Spectrummessi If Microsoft should successfully
implement programs for the direct sale of softwtareugh volume purchase agreements or other amagnys intended to exclude the
distribution or resale channel, Software Spectrupsslits of operations would be materially and askig affected.
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In 2005, Microsoft notified Software Spextr of proposed changes to Microsoft's sales agpragram which, once finalized by
Microsoft, will take effect for customer contraetstered into after July 1, 2006. All contracts ctetgxd prior to July 1, 2006, will be
grandfathered under the existing sales agency anogdnder the proposed revised program for agemmy sales as currently drafted, the
number of performance metrics against which So#v&pectrum is measured and the standard of penficenan those metrics are expected
to increase. Based on a preliminary evaluation wid4oft's proposed program changes, Software Bpaaxpects that the amount of age
fees it earns from Microsoft will be reduced oves three-year period in which it is implementedela the grandfathering of existing sales
agency program sales, however, Software Spectrticigates that the program changes will not hasgggaificant effect on Software
Spectrum's results of operation or financial posiin 2006. Microsoft has yet to finalize the prepd changes, and thus Software Spectrum is
not able to definitively determine the effects oithdsoft's proposed changes on its results of djpaisaand financial position after July 1,
2006.

Revenue is recognized from software saléseatime of product shipment, or in accordanciwie terms of licensing contracts, when
the price to the customer is fixed, and colledtipik reasonably assured. Revenue from maintenemcacts is recognized when invoiced,
the license period has commenced, when the priteetoustomer is fixed, and collectibility is reaably assured, as Software Spectrum has
no future obligations associated with future parfance under these maintenance contracts. Advaliogbiare recorded as deferred revenue
until services are provided.

Cost of revenue for Software Spectrum ideBidirect costs of the licensing activity and sostpurchase and distribute software. The
costs directly attributable to advance billings de¢erred and included in other current and nomeurassets in the consolidated balance sheet
Rebate income received from software publishersdegnized as a reduction of cost of revenue ip#rad in which the rebate is earned
based on a systematic allocation of the total eelratome considered probable of being realized.

Competition

The information services industry is hightympetitive. Many of the Company's competitorthim industry have financial, marketing ¢
other resources significantly greater than thogh@Company. In addition, the Company's softwaselting business could be adversely
affected if major software publishers successfuiplement or expand programs for the direct salsoftfivare through volume purchase
agreements or other arrangements intended to exttheddistribution or resale channel.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company's customer base consists efakthousand accounts including corporations, gowent agencies, educational
institutions, non-profit organizations and othesibess entities. For the year ended December 35, 2@ single customer represented more
than 10 percent of information services revenue. distomer base is represented by a large numis@rnine 500 and Fortune Global 500
companies and the Company does not believe thddvskef any single customer would have a matadakrse effect on its revenues.
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Coal Mining

Historically, coal sold by Level 3's coailnimg operations has been sold primarily under fargn contracts with public utilities, which
burn coal in order to generate steam to producgriity. A substantial portion of Level 3's coavenue was earned from long-term contracts
during 2005, 2004, and 2003. The remainder of L8isfales are made on the spot market. Costy@fiue related to coal sales include ¢
of mining and processing, estimated reclamatiomsgogyalties and production taxes.

The long-term contracts for the deliverycofl establish the price, volume, and quality hegments of the coal to be delivered. The
contracts also contain provisions for periodic prcijustments through the use of indices for iteuth as materials, supplies and labor. Other
portions of the price are adjusted for changegadyrction taxes, royalties and changes in costaumew legislation or regulation. These
contractual adjustments are recognized in reveadkeachanges occur and become billable to themess.

The terms and conditions of the long-teomtracts generally require the customer to meetantontractual commitments. Thus, the
customer has the ability to defer or acceleraté stipments during the year to meet its requiresidRevenue under these contracts is
recognized when coal is actually shipped to théorner.

Competition

The coal industry is highly competitive vied3 competes with other domestic and foreign sogbliers, most of whom are larger and
have greater capital resources devoted to thenciméthg business than Level 3, and with alternamathods of generating electricity and
alternative energy sources. Many of Level 3's cditgys are served by two railroads and, due tactimapetition, often benefit from lower
transportation costs than Level 3, which at eadtsahines is served by a single railroad. Addisittyy many competitors have more favora
geological conditions than Level 3, often resultindower comparative costs of production.

Level 3 is also required to comply withieais federal, state and local laws concerning ptimte of the environment. Level 3 believes its
compliance with environmental protection and laestaration laws will not affect its competitive i@ since its competitors are similarly
affected by these laws.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Level 3's coal sales contracts are conatadrwith several electric utility and industriahepanies. In the event that these customers do
not fulfill contractual responsibilities, Level ®uld pursue the available legal remedies.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenselude salaries, wages and related benefitbu@imy charges for stock based
compensation), property taxes, travel, insurarer, contract maintenance, advertising and othemirgdtrative expenses.
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Advertising Costs

Level 3 expenses the cost of advertisingeasred. Advertising expense is included as amament of selling, general and administra
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statern&nperations. Advertising expense was $2 miJligt2 million and $26 million for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 ctasghe.

Rent Expense

The Company recognizes rent expense ora@lst-line basis over the term of the lease basetthe future minimum rental payments
during the lease term.

Stock-Based Employee Compensation

The Company has accounted for stock-basgdogee compensation using a fair value based mgihosuant to SFAS No. 123
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” ("SFAS W23") since 1998. The Company recognizes expesisg the accelerated vesting
methodology of FASB Interpretation No. 28 "Accowmgtifor Stock Appreciation Rights and Other VariaBteck Option or Award
Plans" ("FIN 28") (See Note 15). Beginning Januhr2006, Level 3 will adopt the provisions of SFAS. 123R, "Share-Based Payment."

Depreciation and Amortization

Property, plant and equipment are recoedexst. Depreciation and amortization for the Canys property, plant and equipment are
computed on straight-line and accelerated (forageitoal assets) methods based on the followinfulibess:

Facility and Leasehold Improvemei 10- 40 year
Network Infrastructure (including fiber and condt 7- 25 year
Operating Equipmer 3-7 year
Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipme 2-7year

Leasehold improvements are depreciated threeshorter of their estimated useful lives oséeterms that are reasonably assured.

Depletion on mineral properties is provideda units-of-extraction basis determined in retato coal committed under sales contracts.
The Company's coal mining business does not usedlsreserve estimates for purposes of depletibynrather, depletes the properties over
the estimated recoverable tons of coal that argined|to be delivered under existing coal contracts

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share have bempuoted using the weighted average number of shiamésg each period. Diluted earnings
(loss) per share is computed by including the diuéffect of common stock that would be issuediadésg conversion or exercise of
outstanding convertible notes, stock options, stiaded compensation awards and other dilutive giesuNo such items were included in
computation of diluted loss per share in 2005, 2602003 due to the losses from continuing openatiacurred by the Company.
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Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorddukeant/oiced amount and can bear interest. The aloe for doubtful accounts is the
Company's best estimate of the amount of probablditdosses in the Company's existing accountsivable. The Company determines the
allowance based on an analysis of the aging ofiticeunts receivable balance. The Company revienadldwance for doubtful accounts
quarterly. Past due balances over 90 days andaoseecified amount are reviewed individually folectibility. Account balances are
charged off against the allowance after all medrtollection have been exhausted and the potéiotiakcovery is considered remote. The
Company does not have any off-balance sheet arpdsure related to its customers.

Restricted Cash

The Company classifies any cash or otheuritées that collateralize outstanding letters@fdit, long-term debt, or certain operating or
performance obligations of the Company as resttickesh. The Company also classifies cash or oduerisies restricted to fund certain
reclamation liabilities as restricted cash. Thesification of restricted cash on the consoliddtaldnce sheet as current or noncurrent is
dependent on the duration of the restriction aedtlrpose for which the restriction exists.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company segregates identifiable intalegassets acquired in an acquisition from goodwilaccordance with SFAS No. 142,
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" ("SFAS Nd21), goodwill is no longer amortized, and is ewafd for impairment at least annually
based on the fair value of the reporting unit taolitthe goodwill relates.

Intangible assets primarily include custontracts, customer relationships and technoémmuired in business combinations. These
assets are amortized on a strailjie-basis over the expected period of benefit Whanges from 2 to 11 years. Certain intangiblegined in
the WilTel transaction have an indefinite life.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amounbg-lived assets or groups of assets, at the lbasset level where cash flow is separately
measurable, for impairment whenever events or ammigcircumstances indicate that the carrying amnmay not be recoverable. The
determination of any impairment includes a comperisf the estimated future undiscounted operatasi dlows anticipated to be generated
during the remaining life of the asset to the ratying value of the asset.

Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company follows the policy of providiag accrual for reclamation of mined propertieadnordance with SFAS No. 143,
"Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” ("SEAo0. 143"), based on the estimated total costgtbration of such properties to meet
compliance with laws governing surface mining. Ehestimated costs are calculated based on thetexifeiture risk adjusted cash flows to
remediate such properties discounted at a riskrfrtee The Company also provides an accrual fdgatibns related to certain colocation
leases and right-of-way agreements in accordantteSHAS No. 143, based on the estimated totalafaststoration of such properties to
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their original condition. These estimated obligati@re calculated based on the expected futureudised cash flows using the Company's
estimated weighted average cost of capital atithe the obligation is incurred and applying a ptuliy factor for conditional restoration
obligations. Changes in expected future cash flamesdiscounted at interest rates that were in effiethe time of the original estimate for
downward revision to such cash flows, and at irsterates in effect at the time of the change favang revisions in the expected future cash
flows.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided fortémeporary differences between the financial repgréind tax basis of the Company's assets
and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effectthe year in which the differences are expeate@verse. Net operating losses not utilized
be carried forward for 20 years to offset futureatale income. A valuation allowance has been rembatjainst deferred tax assets, as the
Company is unable to conclude under relevant adoaustandards that it is more likely than not theterred tax assets will be realizable.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes inc@ioss) and other non-owner related changes intyqot included in income (loss), such as
unrealized gains and losses on marketable secuciissified as available for sale, foreign curyeinanslation adjustments related to foreign
subsidiaries, and other adjustments.

Foreign Currencies

Generally, local currencies of foreign ddlesies are the functional currencies for finahogporting purposes. Assets and liabilities are
translated into U.S. dollars at year-end exchaatgsr Revenue, expenses and cash flows are tehsising average exchange rates
prevailing during the year. Gains or losses resglffom currency translation are recorded as a corapt of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders' dedind in the statements of comprehensive lossg#ifgiant portion of the Company's
foreign subsidiaries have the Euro as its functicoerency, which experienced significant fluctoas against the U.S. dollar during 2005,
2004 and 2003. As a result, the Company has experkesignificant foreign currency translation atqents which are recognized as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive indtoes) in stockholders' deficit and in the statetmd comprehensive loss.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with generally accepted accounting piptes requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities and disclosuir@atingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported ansoofitevenues and expenses during the reportingdo&rhe most critical estimates and
assumptions are made in determining the allowancddubtful accounts, revenue reserves, whetheaimmgnt charges are necessary, useful
lives of fixed assets, accruals for estimated lidos that are probable and estimatable, cosewémue disputes for the communications
services, rebates for Software Spectrum, unfaveradtract liabilities set up in purchase accognéind asset retirement obligations. Actual
results could differ from those estimates and agsioms.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFASIRBR, "Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS No. 123R"). SNAS123R requires that
compensation cost relating to share-based paymargections be recognized in the financial statésrsgmsed on the fair value of equity or
liability instruments issued. The U.S. Securitiad &xchange Commission extended the effective afa®-AS No. 123R such that the
Company is first required to adopt SFAS No. 123Rit@ng January 1, 2006. The adoption of SFAS N&@RLon January 1, 2006 is not
expected to have a significant effect on the Comisdimancial position or results of operationgtes Company adopted the expense
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounthiog Stock-Based Compensation” in 1998.

After adopting SFAS No. 123R, the Compaxgeets to utilize a modified Black-Scholes modevatue any outperform stock options
granted to employees. The Company believes thakthtive short life of the options and the othariables used in the model provide a
reasonable estimate of the fair value of the opdibthe time of grant.

The FASB issued SFAS No. 153, "Exchangdsarf-Monetary Assets”, which is effective for Ledestarting January 1, 2006. Under
SFAS No. 153, the Company will measure assets egathat fair value, as long as the transactiorchasmercial substance and the fair
value of the assets exchanged is determinablerwigi@isonable limits. A non-monetary exchange haeswercial substance if the future cash
flows of the entity are expected to change sigaifity as a result of the exchange. The adoptid®F#&S No. 153 is not anticipated to have a
material effect on the Company's financial positiomesults of operations as Level 3 is a parg liomited number of non-monetary
transactions and those transactions have not baterial.

Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Isswe 04-6, "Accounting for Stripping Costs Incurradatidg Production in the Mining
Industry" ("EITF No. 04-6") establishes appropriateounting for stripping costs incurred during pneduction phase and is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005 witrly adoption permitted. EITF No. 04-6 concluthes stripping costs incurred during
the production phase of a mine are variable pradiciosts that should be included in the costsiefitventory produced during the period
that the stripping costs are incurred. EITF No60ther defines inventory produced as mineral lizs been extracted. As a result, stripping
costs related to exposed, but not extracted minghdbe expensed as incurred rather than defeurei the mineral is extracted. The
Company's coal mining business currently defeipptrg costs and amortizes these costs over theder which the underlying coal is
mined. The Company expects the adoption of EITFOMe6 beginning January 1, 2006 will not have aisicant effect on the Company's
financial position or results of operations.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Intetption No. 47 "Accounting for Conditional AssettiRement Obligations,” ("FIN 47").
FIN 47 provides additional clarification as to whmympanies should recognize asset retirement aldigapursuant to SFAS No. 143,
"Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” Thempany's adoption of FIN 47, effective on Decen8ier2005, did not have a material
effect on the Company's results of operationsrarfcial position as Level 3 recognized the discedinalue of its conditional asset retirem
obligations when it adopted SFAS No. 143 at tharbegg of 2003.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement M, "Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—paement of APB Opinion No. 20
and FASB Statement No. 3", ("SFAS No. 154"). Thigt&nent requires retroactive application to ppieriod financial statements of a
voluntary change in accounting
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principle unless it is impracticable and is effeetfor fiscal years beginning after December 1®32®reviously, most voluntary changes in
accounting principle were recognized by including tumulative effect of changing to the new accognprinciple in net income of the
period of the change. The adoption of SFAS No.i$5%t expected to have a significant effect onGbenpany's financial position or results
of operations.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts may have beelassified to conform to the current year preséomat

In 2005 the Company has separately disdltse operating, investing and financing portiorihaf cash flows attributable to its
discontinued operations, which in prior periodseveaported on a combined basis as a single amount.

(2) Acquisitions

WilTel:  On December 23, 2005, the Company completeddbaisition of WilTel Communications Group, LLOAfITel"), from
Leucadia National Corporation and its subsidiafiegether "Leucadia"). The consideration paid cetesi of approximately $390 million in
cash (which included a $16 million adjustment fstiraated excess working capital), plus $100 milliorcash to reflect Leucadia's having
complied with its obligation to leave that amouhtash in WilTel, and 115 million newly issued ugistered shares of Level 3 common
stock, valued at $313 million. The Company alsained costs of approximately $7 million relatedhe transaction. The cash purchase price
is subject to post-closing adjustments based amabatorking capital and other contractual itemefhe closing date. Level 3 entered into
certain transactions with WilTel prior to the acijtion of WilTel by Level 3, whereby it receivedstafor communications services to be
provided in the future. As a result of the acqiosit Level 3 can no longer amortize this defermgenue into earnings and accordingly,
reduced the purchase price applied to the netsaasqtiired in the WilTel transaction by $2 milliehe amount of the unamortized deferred
revenue balance on December 23, 2005. The redusenations attributable to WilTel are includedlive consolidated financial statements
from the date of acquisition.

The acquisition includes all of WilTel'smamunications business and WilTel's Vyvx video traission business. The acquisition also
includes a multi-year contract between SBC Senite,and WilTel ("SBC Master Services AgreemenRecently, SBC Services Inc.
became a subsidiary of AT&T, Inc. ("AT&T") (togethéSBC") and announced its intention to migrategbevices provided by WilTel to the
merged SBC Services, Inc. and AT&T network. Wil&ad SBC amended the SBC Master Services Agreemenn through 2009 and it
provides a gross margin purchase commitment of $38mn from December 2005 through the end of 20&Td $75 million from
January 2008 through the end of 2009. Only purchaten-net services count toward satisfactiornsf purchase commitment. Originating
and terminating access charges paid to local phompanies are passed through to SBC in accordaitice fiormula that approximates cost.
Additionally, the SBC Master Services Agreementvpes for the payment of $50 million from SBC ifrtaén performance criteria are met
Level 3 in 2006 and 2007. If Level 3 meets the genfance criteria it is eligible to earn $25 millian2006 and $25 million in 2007.

As specified in the purchase agreement hétlcadia, WilTel transferred certain excluded esgeLeucadia and Leucadia assumed
certain excluded liabilities. The excluded assettuide all cash and
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cash equivalents in excess of $100 million at digsall marketable securities, WilTel's headquarterilding located in Tulsa, Oklahoma and
certain other miscellaneous assets. In additiofif®/assigned to Leucadia all of its right to reeetash payments from SBC totaling

$236 million, pursuant to the Termination, Mutual®se and Settlement Agreement, dated June 15, @0®ng Leucadia, WilTel and SE
The excluded liabilities include all of WilTel'srig-term debt obligations, WilTel's obligations unite defined benefit pension plan, certain
other employee related liabilities and other claifitee agreement required Leucadia to pay in fub@&WilTel's obligations under its credit
agreement and for Leucadia to release WilTel fromabligation under the outstanding mortgage neteised by its headquarters building.
Level 3 entered into an agreement with Leucadlaaee a portion of the former WilTel headquarterisding in Tulsa.

Preliminary Purchase Price Allocatic

Under business combination accountingtdled preliminary purchase price was allocated i#Méf's net tangible and identifiable
intangible assets based on their estimated fairegahs of December 23, 2005 as set forth belowpfdianinary allocation of the purchase
price was based upon a preliminary valuation arddbmpany's estimates and assumptions are subjelcahge upon the receipt and
management's review of the final valuation andfite determination of restructuring costs as dibedt below. The primary areas of the
purchase price allocation that are not yet finaliggate to tangible and identifiable intangiblsets, the fair value of deferred revenue, the
value of certain assumed long-term lease and estieiment obligations and restructuring costs.

Tangible and Intangible Long-Lived Assets

In performing the preliminary purchase pradlocation, the Company considered, among otetofs, the intention for future use of
acquired assets, analyses of historical finan@diopmance and estimates of future performance itf&s products. The fair value of assets
was based, in part, on a preliminary valuation gisirtost and income approach and estimates anchpissns provided by management. The
tangible assets primarily include the real and geaibproperty used to provide communications adéwiservices. In addition, tangible assets
include the fair value of software purchased oretligyed by WilTel. The intangible assets have deabée lives ranging from 2 to 11 years.
Intangible assets primarily include customer relahips and the Vyvx trademark. Management hagglan indefinite life on the Vyvx
trademark and lives ranging from 6 to 11 yearsHercustomer relationships.

Deferred Revenu

The estimated fair value of deferred rexeeimeluded in the preliminary purchase price alfimrawas determined based on monthly
amounts billed in advance for which services wdlgrovided to customers in the next month. Levaid3not record deferred revenue for
long-term contracts in which WilTel had alreadya®ed consideration from the customer as Level&dwt expect to incur any direct and
incremental costs associated with the contracts.

Current and Noncurrent Obligations

The fair value of WilTel's current liabiis was determined based on the expected cash fibwirse next twelve months. Level 3 did not
present value the cash flows as it does not extpegtresent values to be significantly differeratrththe gross cash flows.
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The noncurrent obligations assumed in thi@&Vtransaction have been recorded at their priegglue using an appropriate interest rate.
The Company has identified certain WilTel faciliithat it does not expect to utilize for the coneblibusiness. The Company has not
completed this analysis and may identify additiomaless facilities for which restructuring liabds may be necessary. The Company has
revalued WilTel's asset retirement obligations gdiavel 3's weighted cost of capital rather thahmalis weighted cost of capital.

Sprint:  On October 1, 2004, the Company acquired thaleglle dial Internet access business of Sprintr@anications Company,
L.P. ("Sprint"). Level 3 paid $34 million in cash &cquire the business, which provides dial-uprir@eaccess to leading Internet service
providers ("ISPs") throughout the United States agebed to provide discounted services to Sprattulere valued at $5 million, which was
accounted for as part of the purchase price. L&waid Sprint entered into a transition services@agent for the migration of customers onto
the Level 3 network, which Level 3 completed in thied quarter of 2005. During the migration periodtil such time as a customer contract
was assumed or assigned, amounts received forssmiovided by Sprint were accounted for as aatémiuin purchase price as opposed to
revenue. The net amount received prior to the aggamor assignment of these contracts totaled #l®omthrough December 31, 2005 and
therefore reduced the purchase price to $29 milNith the completion of the migration activitiésvel 3 recognizes as revenue, amounts
received from all customer contracts acquired is titansaction. The results of operations attriblgt#o the Sprint assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are included in the consoliddieancial statements from the date of assumpirasssignment of contracts.

ICG: On April 1, 2004, the Company acquired the wkale dial access customer contracts of ICG Conwations, Inc. ("ICG"). Th
Company agreed to pay approximately $35 millionash to acquire the contracts and related equipméith provide dial-up Internet
access to various large customers and other le&8Pg The terms of the agreement required Letelgay $25 million at closing and
additional payments of $5 million on both July 002 and October 1, 2004. The purchase price wge®ub post-closing adjustments, but
those adjustments were not material. Level 3 migr#ite traffic from the customer contracts acquirech ICG onto its own network
infrastructure and the migration was substantiedisnplete by the end of 2004. The results of openatattributable to the ICG assets acqt
and liabilities assumed are included in the codstdid financial statements from the date of actiisi

Telverse: Level 3 completed the acquisition of Telversamnunications, Inc. ("Telverse"), a provider of teakIP-based voice
services for enterprises, in July 2003 for appratety $29 million in Level 3 common stock (approzimly 4.2 million shares) and $2 milli
in cash consideration. Telverse's revenues andtsedioperations are included in the consolidattadements of operations from the date of
acquisition. The financial results of Telverse ptmacquisition were immaterial to Level 3. Managat's preliminary allocation of the
purchase price resulted in the consideration, dinlytransaction costs, plus assumed liabilitieseerding the fair value of the identifiable
tangible assets acquired by approximately $32 anillivhich was initially recorded as goodwill. Therfpany completed its assessment o
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in theefsdvtransaction in the fourth quarter of 2003 cWwhiesulted in allocating the purchase price
consideration primarily to developed technologyuced with an insignificant amount allocated totomser contracts.
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Genuity: In 2003, Level 3 completed the acquisitiondistantially all of the assets and operations ofuBg, a Tier 1 Internet
Protocol (IP) communications company. The totahaamsideration, including transaction costs, wasa@ximately $144 million including
approximately $60 million in cash consideratiorite Genuity Bankruptcy Estate plus approximately 8illion in cash to reimburse the
estate for payments on assumed capital lease tibligaelated to network operating equipment. Iditah, Level 3 assumed certain of
Genuity's long term operating agreements. Leveit8red into certain transactions with Genuity ptothe acquisition of the assets and
operations of Genuity by Level 3, whereby it reegivash for communications services to be proviidélde future. As a result of the
acquisition, Level 3 could no longer amortize ttiéserred revenue into earnings and accordinglyaed the purchase price applied to the net
assets acquired in the Genuity transaction by $iflom the amount of the unamortized deferred reebalance on February 4, 2003. The
preliminary fair value of the assets acquired aalilities assumed was subsequently adjusted d@®®3 based upon actual settlements
between the Genuity Bankruptcy Estate and Level pést closing adjustments, which reduced thehasge price paid by Level 3 by
$35 million, as well as increased the liabilitissamed by $4 million. This resulted primarily idecrease in the value assigned to property,
plant and equipment and identifiable intangiblestssT he results of operations attributable toGlkauity assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are included in the consolidated finastiéments from the date of acquisition.

The unaudited financial information in tiable below summarizes the combined results ofaidjpers of Level 3 and the acquired
businesses, on a pro forma basis, as though thpazoes acquired in 2004 and 2005 have been combmetithe beginning of each of the
periods presented. The pro forma financial inforamais presented for informational purposes onlgt ot indicative of the results of
operations that would have been achieved if thaiaitipns had taken place at the beginning of eddhe periods presented. The pro forma
financial information for all periods presentedaaiiscludes the preliminary business combinatioroanting effect on historical revenues of
the acquired companies, adjustments to depreciatiacquired property, amortization charges frogquaed intangible assets, restructuring
costs, acquisition and tender offer costs refleotatie historical statements of operations foiquks prior to Level 3's acquisition.

Unaudited
Pro Forma
Years ended
December 31,

2005 2004

(dollars in millions, except per

share data)
Revenue $ 5322 $ 5,25¢
Loss from Continuing Operatiol (544) (36€)
Income from Discontinued Operatio 49 —
Net Loss (49%) (36€)
Net Loss per Shai (0.67) (0.4¢)
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Included in the actual results and pro fafinancial information for the year ended Decenfr2005 are certain amounts which affect
the comparability of the results, including terniioa revenue of $133 million, a gain on the salé igiStructure of $49 million, a workforce
reduction charge of $15 million, non-cash impairtrehrarges of $9 million that primarily resultedrfrdhe decision to terminate projects for
certain voice products in the Communications bissne

Included in the actual results and pro fafinancial information for the year ended Decenfer2004 are certain amounts which affect
the comparability of the results, including gaifi$97 million as a result of the early extinguignts of certain long-term debt, $113 million
of termination revenue, a gain of approximately $#Bion from the sale of Commonwealth TelephoneeEprises, Inc. common stock and
lease impairment charges of $14 million.

The fair value of the assets acquired aediabilities assumed in the WilTel transactioa based upon a preliminary valuation and are
subject to change based on post-closing purch&se gufjustments and changes to the integrationgflime combined business. The
estimated fair value of assets acquired and lissliassumed in the Sprint, ICG, Telverse and Ggmainsactions as of their respective
acquisition dates after reflecting post-closingghaise price adjustments are as follows.

WilTel Sprint ICG Telverse Genuity

(dollars in millions)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 126 $ — $ — 3 — 3 —
Accounts receivabl 257 — — — —
Other current asse 18 3 2 — 50
Property, plant and equipment, | 66C — — 1 24¢€
Identifiable intangible asse 152 31 37 32 107
Other asset 26 — — — 22
Total Asset: 1,241 34 39 33 42¢
Liabilities:
Accounts payabl 204 — — 2 —
Accrued payrol 29 — — — —
Other current liabilitie: 69 — 4 — 56
Current portion of lon-term debi — — — — 121
Long-term debt — — — — 18¢
Deferred reveni—WilTel/Genuity 41 — — — 6
Deferred reveni—Level 3 2 5 — — (76)
Other liabilities 90 — — — 21
Total Liabilities 431 5 4 2 31€
Purchase Pric $ 81C $ 29 $ 3% % 31 $ 10¢

The fair value of the assets acquired atillities assumed in the Genuity transaction wigrmined based on a valuation completed in
May 2003. Subsequently in 2003, Level 3 changegthiehase price allocation by increasing the prielamy fair value of the MFON assets
be sold to CenturyTel, Inc. ("CenturyTel") (See &8) to $16 million to reflect the actual proceesteived
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from CenturyTel. A corresponding decrease in prigpg@lant and equipment and identifiable intangsbleas recorded in conjunction with t|
adjustment.

During the second quarter of 2003, the Camypexited the managed hosting portion of the lassint acquired through the Genuity
transaction. The Company sold the hosting custoaraisoperations to Computer Sciences Corporati®8C"). Due to the decision to exit
the managed hosting portion of the business, wiéchbeen contemplated at the time of acquisitioa net operating results of the business
have not been consolidated in the consolidatedragtt of operations. Level 3 did not realize argcpeds from the sale of the hosting
business to CSC.

The following is the summarized result®pérations of the managed hosting business fagpehied ended May 24, 2003 (since
acquisition on February 4, 2003) (dollars in miik).

Revenue $ 14
Operating Los: 1)

(3) Discontinued Operations

On November 30, 2005, Level 3 sold$tructure to Infocrossing, Inc. ("Infocrossingty foroceeds of $85 million which consisted of
$82 million in cash and $3 million of Infocrossifge. common stock. The cash purchase price iestii post-closing adjustments based on
actual working capital as of the closing date. l&/eecognized a $49 million gain on the transactiothe fourth quarter of 2005.

The following is the summarized result®pérations of thei()Structure business for the eleven months ende@Mber 30, 2005 and
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

2005 2004 2003

(dollars in millions, except per share data)

Revenue: $ 64 $ 7% 79
Costs and Expense

Cost of revenu 47 53 58
Depreciation and amortizatic 8 13 14
Selling, general and administrati 9 9 19
Restructuring and impairment charg — — 5
Total costs and expens 64 75 96
Loss from Operation — — a7
Gain on Sale of Discontinued Operatic 49 — —
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatic $ 49 % — 8 a7
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The following is summarized financial infieation for the discontinued (Structure business as of December 31, 2004:

December 31,
2004

(dollars in millions)

Assets
Current Assets
Receivable! $ 4
Other 9
Total Current Asset 13
Property, Plant and Equipment, | 33
Total Assets $ 46

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 14
Current portion of lon-term debt 1
Accrued payroll and employee bene 4
Deferred revenu 2
Other 1
Total Current Liabilities 22
Deferred Revenu —
Net Assets $ 24
I

These amounts are reflected in other feréspective asset and liability accounts on timsalidated balance sheet as of December 31,
2004.

On December 31, 2003, Level 3 sold MFONC&mturyTel for approximately $16 million. MFON igegional communications system
located in the midwestern United States and wasisedjby Level 3 as part of the Genuity transactioRebruary 2003. Level 3 adjusted the
value of MFON assets from its original estimatelligapursuant to the one-year "allocation periodvfsions of SFAS No. 141, to match the
proceeds from this transaction. As a result, thengamy did not recognize a gain or loss on the disjpo of MFON.
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The following is the summarized result®pérations of the MFON business for the period dridlecember 31, 2003 (since acquisition
on February 4, 2003) (dollars in millions):

2003
Revenue $ 16
Costs and Expense
Cost of revenu 2
Selling, general and administrati 2
Total costs and expens 4
Income from Operation 12
Loss from Sale of Discontinued Operatic —
Income from Discontinued Operatio $ 12

In June 2003, Software Spectrum annourftaittwas exiting the contact services businessder to concentrate on the software
reseller business. In conjunction with this decisiBoftware Spectrum sold substantially all of¢batact services business to H.I.G. Capital
for approximately $4 million in cash. Software Spem recorded a loss within discontinued operatioirgpproximately $9 million on the
sale.

The following is the summarized result®pérations of the contact services business fopéhied in 2003 through June 18, 2003
(dollars in millions):

2003
Revenue $ 38
Costs and Expense
Cost of revenu 25
Depreciation and amortizatic 1
Selling, general and administrati 10
Total costs and expens 36
Income from Operation 2
Loss from Sale of Discontinued Operatic 9)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatic $ @)
|

Level 3's management continues to revienGbmpany's existing lines of business and senffegings to determine how those lines of
business and service offerings assist with the Gamyip focus on delivery of communications and imfation services and meeting its
financial objectives. To the extent that certane$ of business or service offerings are not censiito be compatible with the delivery of
communications and information services or withagihg financial objectives, Level 3 may exit thdises of business or stop offering those
services.

(4) Termination Revenue

On March 1, 2005, Level 3 entered into greament with 360networks (USA), Inc. ("360netwdyks which both parties agreed to
terminate a 20-year IRU agreement. Under the new
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agreement, 360networks returned the dark fibeiraily provided by Level 3. Under the original IRigreement, signed in 2000, the cash
received by Level 3 was deferred and amortize@temue over the 20-year term of the agreement.rAsudt of this transaction, Level 3
recognized the unamortized deferred revenue ofceqapately $86 million as non-cash termination rexeim the first quarter of 2005.

On February 22, 2005, France Telecom Loisggdce USA, LLC ("France Telecom”) and Level &fined an agreement to terminate a
dark fiber agreement signed in 2000. Under the ¢esfrihe agreement, France Telecom returned tiee fibLevel 3. Under the original IRU
agreement, the cash received by Level 3 was defamd amortized to revenue over the 20-year tertheoigreement. As a result of this
transaction, Level 3 recognized the unamortize@refl revenue of approximately $40 million as naskctermination revenue in the first
quarter of 2005.

Level 3 and McLeodUSA Incorporated ("McL&péntered into an agreement on November 1, 200éreby McLeod returned certain
intercity dark fiber provided by Level 3 under e@8%greement and provides discounted network srtaLevel 3 in exchange for cash and
other consideration. Cash received under the 1§88ement was deferred and amortized to revenuetige€0-year term of the agreement.
Level 3 had no further service obligations withp@s to the fiber and therefore recognized theridion of remaining unamortized deferred
revenue for the fiber returned as non-cash teriionaevenue in 2004. The Company allocated the atsquaid to McLeod to fiber and
prepaid network expenses. The value of the fibiwrmed was determined based on the capital castsvibuld be avoided in pulling additiol
fiber in certain segments of the Company's intgneittwork where fiber inventory would need to bgleaished in the next three years. The
prepaid network expense was valued based on thargrabdiscounted network expense services the @ompxpects to realize through
purchases of these services on McLeod's network.

In February 2003, Level 3 and XO Commuriacet ("XO") amended their 1998 IRU agreement. A pathe 1998 agreement, XO
purchased 24 fibers and one empty conduit alonglL&g North American intercity network. The amethdgreement, among other things,
required XO to return six fibers and the empty agntb Level 3. In return, Level 3, 1) reduced #rmual operations and maintenance che
that XO was required to pay under the original agrent, 2) provided XO an option, expiring July 20@7acquire a 20 year IRU for a single
conduit within or along Level 3's intercity netwaakd 3) provided XO an option to purchase up to 25%e fiber installed in the next
conduit within or along each segment of the intgroetwork.

As individual segments were delivered to, X@vel 3 deferred and amortized the revenue ataitile to the conduit over the term of the
original agreement. As a result of the amendedemgeat, Level 3 had no further service obligatiothwespect to the original conduit, and
thus recognized $294 million of communications rexe which was the remaining unamortized deferegénmue from the original sale of the
conduit, less the fair values of the operationsrmathtenance services, and options to purchasedikconduit provided by Level 3 under
the amended agreement. The values of the seruicksmions to purchase fiber and conduit were detexd based on the fair value of sim
services and assets.

(5) Restructuring and Impairment Charges

In the first quarter of 2005, the Compamiiated a workforce reduction of approximately 4ffployees in its North American and
European communications business and as a resaginzed
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severance and related charges of approximatelyr#ilibn. As of December 31, 2005, the Company laisfed its remaining obligations
associated with the workforce reduction.

During 2005, the Company identified addiitbcommunications facilities that it no longeruggd and would not provide any future
economic benefit to the Company. Also during tharythe Company revised its lease impairment aizalggeflect improvements in sublei
income for communications facilities impaired ingprperiods. In total, the Company reduced its exgelease impairment obligations by
$1 million in 2005.

In 2004, the information services busimes®gnized approximately $2 million of restructgricharges related to the ongoing integration
and restructuring of Software Spectrum announce&®@8. In total, the information services busingaisl approximately $5 million of costs
during 2004, including $3 million for employee rgld matters and $2 million in facilities relatedstoassociated with the 2003 and 2004
integration and restructuring actions. As of Deceni, 2004, the Company had completed the workfoeductions and paid the remaining
severance and employee related obligations asedaidth the actions announced and 2004.

The communications business recorded lieagairment charges of $14 million for real propdegses in North America and Europe in
the fourth quarter of 2004. The charge resultethfoeasing use of certain leased space, the sighisigbleases for existing vacant space at
lower than estimated rates, and extending the attuinsublease dates for other vacant propertietoduigrent market conditions. The
Company paid approximately $3 million of facilitiedated costs in 2004 for restructuring chargesnded in 2001.

In the first quarter of 2003, Level 3 annoed workforce reductions that affected approxitgate200 employees in the communications
business. These actions were primarily a resuh®integration of acquired operations from the @igriransaction into Level 3's operations
and the Company matching its European costs wite@rd revenues. The Company recorded restructcinaugies of approximately
$26 million related to these actions during theryaaled December 31, 2003. The remaining obligaifddd million with respect to this
action was paid during 2004.

The information services business recoghfoe the year ended December 31, 2003, approxiyn@iel million of restructuring charges
related to the ongoing integration and restructuahSoftware Spectrum. These actions affectedaqimiately 500 employees and resulted in
the closure of certain facilities. Included in B4 million of restructuring charges, were $4 noitliof accrued lease termination costs for
facilities it has ceased using.
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A summary of the restructuring charges imtated activity follows:

Severance and Related

Facilities Related

Number of Amount Amount

Employees (in millions) (in millions)
Balance December 31, 20 5 $ 3 $ 10
2003 Charge 1,61¢ 36 4
2003 Payment (1,569 (33 4)
Balance December 31, 20 10¢ 6 10
2004 Charge 80 1 15
2004 Payment (189 @) (6)
Balance December 31, 20 — — 19
2005 Charges(Benefi 47z 15 (1)
2005 Payment (472) (15) (5)
Balance December 31, 20 — % — % 13

Lease termination obligations of $13 milliare expected to be paid over the terms of thairag leases, which extend to 2015, if the
Company is unable to negotiate a buyout of theeleas

Impairments

The Company at least annually, or as event&rcumstances change that could affect theveradility of the carrying value of its
communications and information services assetgjwus a comprehensive review of the carrying valugs communications assets to
determine if the carrying amount of the commun@atssets are recoverable in accordance with SFAS ML, "Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" ("SFNS. 144"). For purposes of this review, Level Bamately evaluates for impairment its
colocation facilities, certain excess conduits am@ommunications network (including optronicsefi, conduits and customer premise
equipment) as these are the lowest levels withragglg identifiable cash flows for grouping of assd he impairment analysis of these assets
are based on long-term revenue growth, gross neggid cash flow forecasts of operating results,sates of assets over their estimated
useful lives. The Company concluded that the assets not impaired as of December 31, 2005. Managémill continue to assess the
Company's assets for impairment as events occas ordustry conditions warrant.

The Company recognized $9 million of nosfcanpairment charges in 2005 that primarily reiifrom the decision to terminate
projects for certain voice services and certainrmiation technology projects in the communicatibusiness. These projects have identifii
costs which Level 3 can separately evaluate fomimpent. The costs incurred for these projectduiting capitalized labor, were impaired as
the carrying value of these projects exceeded #stimated fair value. The Company did not inciseagnpairment expenses in 2004 or 2|

(6) Sale of Toll Road Operations

On January 3, 2003, California Private Bortation Company ("CPTC"), a majority-owned sdizsiy of the Company, sold the "91
Express Lanes" toll road assets in Orange Courglffotnia to the Orange County Transportation Auityo The Company received net
proceeds from the sale of
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$46 million and recorded a gain of approximatel &7illion in Other, net in the consolidated statetna operations. The Company's total
longterm debt was reduced by approximately $139 miléisra result of the sale as the debt incurrechtmfie the construction of the toll rc
had been consolidated due to the Company's 65%yeaqtérest in CPTC.

(7) Loss Per Share

The Company had a loss from continuing afi@ns for the three years ended December 31, 20G5efore, the dilutive effect of the
approximately 418 million, 171 million and 83 midli shares issuable pursuant to the five, four hrektseries of convertible notes
outstanding at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 206fectively, have not been included in the compartadif diluted loss per share because
their inclusion would have been axilutive to the computation. In addition, the dilt effect of the approximately 59 million, 49 nolh and
52 million options and warrants outstanding at Delger 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, hatdeen included in the computation of
diluted loss per share because their inclusion evbalve been anti-dilutive to the computation.

The following details the loss per sharewations for the Level 3 common stock (dollarsmillion, except per share data):

Year Ended
2005 2004 2003
Loss from Continuing Operatiol $ 687 $ (45¢) $ (704)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (20(
includes gain on sal 49 — (12
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Princi — — 5
Net Loss $ (63¢) $ (45¢) $ (713

Total Number of Weighted Average Shares

Outstanding used to Compute Basic and Diluted

Earnings Per Share (in thousan 699,58 683,84t 565,93
Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Level 3 Common Si

(Basic and Diluted)

Loss from Continuing Operatiol $ 0.9 $ 0.67) % (1.25)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatic 0.07 — (0.09
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting

Principle — — 0.01
Net Loss $ 0.9 $ 0.67) $ (1.2€)
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(8) Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instaments
The following methods and assumptions wsed to determine classification and fair valuenancial instruments:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents generally consist of fundested in highly liquid instruments purchasethvén original maturity of three months or
less. The securities are stated at cost, whichoappates fair value.

Marketable and Restricted Securities

At December 31, 2005, marketable securit@ssist of U.S. Treasury securities and the Irfssing shares received in thie)Gtructure
transaction. For most of 2005, the Company chariaetbthe Treasury securities as held to matubitya result of the acquisition of WilTel
and expected cash flow requirements in 2006, thapgamy designated certain Treasury securities dlbleafor sale in the fourth quarter of
2005. These securities total $173 million and aftected as current assets on the consolidateddmkheet at December 31, 2005. At
December 31, 2004, marketable securities consgtacely of U.S. Treasury securities that were abtarized as held to maturity. Restricted
securities consist primarily of cash investmeng gerve to collateralize outstanding letters eflitrand certain performance and operating
obligations of the Company. The cost of the sel@giised in computing unrealized and realized gamaslosses is determined by specific
identification. Fair values are estimated baseduwted market prices for the securities. The netalized holding gains and losses for
marketable securities classified as available &te are included in accumulated other compreherisoame (loss) within stockholders' eqt
(deficit). Securities characterized as held to miggtare stated at cost. The unrealized holdinggaind losses for securities characterized as
held to maturity are not reflected in the consdbdefinancial statements.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 the unredlimdding gains and losses on the marketable sesuwere as follows:

Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Holding Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(dollars in millions)

2005
Marketable Securitie:
U.S. Treasury securiti—Current $ 17 % — % — % 173
Equity Securitie—Current 3 — — 3
U.S. Treasury securiti—Noncurrent 234 — 2 232
$ 41C $ — % (2) $ 40¢
| | | |
2004
Marketable Securitie:
U.S. Treasury securiti—Current $ 228 % — 3 — $ 22t
U.S. Treasury securiti—Noncurrent 114 — Q) 11z

$ 33 % — 8 (1) $ 33¢
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Scheduled maturities of marketable debtisges held at December 31, 2005 are as follows:
2006—%$173 million; 2007—%$234 million.

The Company recognized $2 million of readiZosses from the sale of marketable debt seesiiiti 2005, which are reflected in Other,
net on the consolidated statement of operations.ddmpany recognized $32 million of realized g&iom the sale of marketable equity
securities in 2004, which are reflected in Othet,an the consolidated statement of operations.Gdmpany did not recognize any realized
gains and losses on sales of marketable equityisesun 2003.

Maturities for the restricted securitieyé&aot been presented, as the types of securitesither cash or money market mutual funds
do not have a single maturity date.

Long-Term Debt

The fair value of long-term debt was estemdausing the December 31, 2005 and 2004 averattpe &iid and ask price for the publicly
traded debt instruments. The CBRE Commercial Mgegaas not traded in an organized public manneg.fain value of this instrument is
assumed to approximate the carrying value at DeeeBih 2005 as it was secured by underlying astbes9% Convertible Senior Discount
Notes due 2013 included within Lc-term Debt are not traded in an organized publiomaa The fair value of these notes was calculated
using a convertible model, which uses the Bl&ckoles valuation model to value the equity portbthe security and bond math to value
debt portion of the security (using market yieldsother Level 3 traded debt). The 10% Convertildrai& Notes due 2011 included within
Long-term Debt are not traded in an organized pubknner. Level 3 has obtained a market value &dhird party.

The carrying amount and estimated fair @alaf Level 3's financial instruments are as folow

2005 2004

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

(dollars in millions)

Cash and Cash Equivalel $ 45z % 45z % 44z $ 445
Marketable Securiti—Current 17¢ 17¢ 22¢ 22t
Marketable Securiti—Noncurrent 234 232 114 113
Restricted Securiti—Current 33 33 48 48
Restricted Securiti—Noncurrent 72 72 67 67
Investments (Note 1: 15 15 5 5
Long-term Debt, including current portion (Note ! 6,02: 5,26¢ 5,21( 4,44¢
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(9) Receivables

Receivables at December 31, 2005 and 2@0é as follows:

Information
Communications Services Coal Total

(dollars in millions)

2005
Accounts Receivable
Services and Software Sa $ 40C $ 444 $ 9 $  85&
Allowance for Doubtful Account ()] (6) — (23)
Total $ 38: $ 43¢ 3 9 % 83C
| .| [ | |
2004
Accounts Receivabl¢
Services and Software Sa $ 136 $ 414 $ 12 $ 564
Allowance for Doubtful Account a7 (6) — (23
Total $ 121 $ 40¢ $ 12 3 541

The Company recognized bad debt expenselling, general and administrative expenses aftlean $1 million, $3 million and
$7 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectivelyvéled received $2 million, $2 million and $4 miltimf proceeds for amounts previously
deemed uncollectible in 2005, 2004 and 2003, reésmie. The Company reduced accounts receivableadindiance for doubtful accounts by
approximately $1 million, $8 million, and $8 millidn 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, for theenoff of previously reserved amounts the
Company deemed as uncollectible.

(10) Other

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 other curasséts consisted of the following:

2005 2004

(dollars in millions)

Deferred Cost $ 86 $ 66
Prepaid Asset 61 34
Debt Issuance Costs, r 16 16
Current Assets of Discontinued Operatit — 13
Other 23 16

$ 18¢ $ 14¢

Deferred costs include deferred softwarmt @ther related costs attributable to the infororagervices business and are related to future
revenues.

Prepaid assets include insurance, softweietenance, rent and right of way costs. The asmen 2005 is attributable to the acquisition
of WilTel.
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(11) Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Costs associated directly with expansiorsienprovements to the communications network arsioener installations, including
employee related costs, have been capitalizedCbinepany generally capitalizes costs associatedveitivork construction, provisioning of
services and software development. Capitalizedrlabhd related costs associated with employees amtdact labor working on capital
projects were approximately $51 million, $66 mifliand $61 million for the years ended Decembef805, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Included in capitalized labor and related costs $&amillion, $2 million and $4 million of capitakxl non-cash compensation costs related to
options and warrants granted to employees for éa@syended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, teghec

The Company continues to develop businggpat systems required for its business. The patelirect costs of software, materials and
services, and payroll and payroll related expefmesmployees directly associated with the projectirred when developing the business
support systems are capitalized and included icépéalized costs above. Upon completion of agutpjthe total cost of the business support
system is amortized over an estimated useful fithree years.

The Company reviews its capitalized prgjesttleast annually or when events and circumssainckcate that the assets may be impaired.
When previously capitalized software developmeistcare considered to be impaired, the Companyletds and recognizes an impairment
loss in accordance with SFAS No. 144, "Accountioigthe Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Asséts.

Level 3 has been able to finalize negaiiaiand claims on several of its large multi-yestemork construction projects. As a result, the
Company was able to release approximately $5 mijl&8 million and $28 million of capital expendiuaccruals for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively htmh previously been reported as property, pladtegjuipment. In the ordinary course of
business, as construction projects come to a dlosgCompany reviews the final amounts due antesethy outstanding amounts related to
these contracts, which can result in changes bmatsd costs of the construction projects.

Included in Land and Mineral Properties miaeral properties related to the coal businesls acost basis of approximately $5 million
for each of the years ended December 31, 2005 @@l The remaining Land and Mineral Propertiestiaeaof approximately $205 million
and $182 million for the years ended December 8@52nd 2004, respectively, represent owned agk#ie communications and
information services businesses, including landroipments. The coal mineral properties include ahered leased assets. The various coal
lease agreements require minimum lease paymentgranile for royalty or overriding royalty paymenitased on the tons of coal mined or
sold from the properties. Depletion on the mineraberties is provided on a units-@kiraction basis determined in relation to coal cotted
under sales contracts.

Capitalized business support systems atwionke construction costs that have not been placegrvice have been classified as
construction-in-progress within property, plant aggiipment below.
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At December 31, 2005 and 2004, propergniphnd equipment were as follows:

Accumulated Book
Cost Depreciation Value
(dollars in millions)
December 31, 200!
Land and Mineral Propertie $ 21C $ (26) $ 184
Facility and Leasehold Improvemen
Communication: 1,53 (35%) 1,177
Information Service 3 Q) 2
Coal Mining 15z (149 4
Network Infrastructur: 4,70¢ (1,139 3,567
Operating Equipmen
Communication 2,15¢ (1,51¢ 64C
Information Service 13 (7 6
Coal Mining 69 (62 7
Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipme 11¢€ (10%) 13
Other 22 (19 3
Constructiorin-Progres: 35 — 35
$ 9,01¢ $ (3,379 $ 5,63¢
I I I
December 31, 2004
Land and Mineral Propertit $ 187 $ (18) $ 16¢
Facility and Leasehold Improvemen
Communication 1,38¢ (281) 1,107
Information Service 2 — 2
Coal Mining 14¢ (14%) 4
Network Infrastructurt 4,37¢ (86¢) 3,511
Operating Equipmen
Communication: 1,84: (1,349 494
Information Service 12 (6) 6
Coal Mining 74 (68) 6
Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipme 111 (90 21
Other 24 (14) 10
Constructiorin-Progres: 45 — 45
$ 8,21« $ (2,839 $ 5,37¢
| I |

The value of WilTel's property, plant argippment is based on a preliminary valuation.
Depreciation expense was $587 million i02617 million in 2004 and $752 million in 2003.
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(12) Goodwill and Other Intangibles, net

Goodwill and Other Intangibles, net at Daber 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows (dollamsiifions):

Other

Goodwill Intangibles

December 31, 2005
360networks $ —  $ 4
Sprint — 16
ICG — 4
Telverse — 16
Genuity — 30
WilTel — 151
McLeod 40 —
Software Spectrum (including Corpsc 194 48
XCOM 30 —

$ 264 $ 26¢

December 31, 200:

Sprint $ — 3 28
ICG — 23
Telverse — 23
Genuity — 55
McLeod 41 —
Software Spectrum (including Corpsc 20z 55
XCOM 30 —

$ 27 % 184

The Company segregates identifiable intalegassets acquired in a business combination f@oawill. In accordance with SFAS
No. 142, Goodwill is no longer amortized and theyiag amount of the goodwill must be evaluatetkast annually for impairment using
fair value based test. An assessment of the carmaiue of the goodwill attributable to communioas and information services businesses
indicated that the assets were not impaired aseckébber 31, 2005.

On December 23, 2005, Level 3 completecattrpuisition of WilTel. A preliminary valuation tfie assets acquired indicated a value of
$152 million for intangible assets. The intangiasets primarily include customer relationshipstaedvyvx trademark. The preliminary
valuation has placed an indefinite life on the Vyrademark and lives ranging from 6 to 11 yeardliercustomer relationships.

During the first quarter of 2005, Level & phased a customer contract from 360networksash @and future services valued at
$4 million. The total purchase price was recordedraintangible asset and will be amortized overémaining four-year term of the
customer contract.

During 2005, the Company reduced its gotidwia total of $9 million. In 2005, the Compangtdrmined that $8 million of income tax
obligations recorded in the original purchase pailtecation for the 2002 acquisitions of CorpStft,. and Software Spectrum, Inc. were no
longer required and as a result, reduced the gdlogivibutable to the acquisitions by $8 milliam 2005. In the third quarter
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of 2005, the Company determined that the remaicowgs accrued for the integration of the McLeodress were no longer required and, as
a result, reduced the goodwill attributable to Meleod transaction by $1 million.

In October 2004, Level 3 acquired the whale dial Internet access business of Sprint. Alsgbahe purchase price allocation, Level 3
valued the customer relationships and contract8amillion and is amortizing this asset over amested life of three years.

In April 2004, Level 3 purchased managediem contracts and related equipment from ICG. Asgfahe purchase price allocation,
Level 3 valued the customer relationships and eatdrat $37 million and is amortizing this assetravperiod equal to the term of the
primary customer contract acquired of two years.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Comaay$30 million of goodwill attributable to the adsjtion of XCOM in 1998.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 identifiabtangible assets were as follows (dollars in ioii§):

Accumulated Book
Cost Amortization Value
December 31, 200!
Customer Contract:
Sprint $ 31 $ (15 $ 16
ICG 37 (33 4
Genuity 28 a7) 11
McLeod 49 (49 —
Customer Relationship
Genuity 79 (60) 19
Software Spectrum (including CorpSc 75 (27) 48
360networks 4 — 4
WilTel 12C (1) 11¢
Trademarks
WilTel 32 — 32
Technology:
Telverse, 31 (15) 16
$ 48 $ (217 $ 26¢
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December 31, 200:
Customer Contract:

Sprint $ 31 $ 3 $ 28
ICG 37 (14) 23
Genuity. 28 (12) 17
McLeod 49 (49 —
Customer Relationship
Genuity 79 (47) 38
Software Spectrum (including CorpSc 75 (20 55
Technology:
Telverse, 32 (9 23
$ 331 $ (147 $ 184

Intangible asset amortization expense wasrfillion, $65 million and $61 million for the yesaended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

The amortization expense related to infaleghssets currently recorded on the Company'sdfooleach of the five succeeding years is
estimated to be the following for the years endedddnber 31: 2006—$70 million; 2007—$42 million; 866$28 million; 2009—
$24 million and 2010 and thereafter—$73 million.

(13) Other Assets, net

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 other assetsisted of the following:

2005 2004

(dollars in millions)

Debt Issuance Costs, r $ 54 $ 67
Investment: 15 5
Deposits 25 1
Noncurrent Assets of Discontinued Operati — 33
Other 29 23

$ 12§ 12¢

At the beginning of 2004, the Company haidequity position in Commonwealth Telephone Emisgg, Inc., an incumbent local
exchange carrier operating in various rural Pervagyh markets, and CTSI, Inc. a competitive loega@hange carrier. In January 2004, the
Company sold its remaining investment in CommontheBélephone for $41 million in cash, resultingaigain of approximately $23 millio

In 2005, the Company invested $10 millionnfinera Corporation, a privately-held communieas equipment company. Level 3 is
accounting for this investment using the cost meétho
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Included in the assets acquired in the \liffansaction were long term deposits primarilfhvimsurance carriers and financial
institutions.

(14) Long-Term Debt

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, long-terit deas as follows:

2005 2004

(dollars in millions)

Senior Secured Term Loan (11.42% due 2( $ 73C 3% 73C
Senior Notes (11.0% due 20(C 132 132
Senior Notes (9.125% due 20( 954 954
Senior Discount Notes (10.5% due 20 144 144
Senior Euro Notes (10.75% due 20 59 68
Convertible Senior Notes (2.875% due 20 374 374
Senior Discount Notes (12.875% due 20 48¢ 475
Senior Euro Notes (11.25% due 20 12z 14z
Senior Notes (11.25% due 20! 96 96
Senior Notes (10.75% due 20! 50C 50C
Convertible Senior Notes (10.0% due 20 88C —
Convertible Senior Notes (5.25% due 20 34k 34k
Convertible Senior Discount Notes (9.0% due 2( 252 23C
Convertible Subordinated Notes (6.0% due 2( 362 362
Convertible Subordinated Notes (6.0% due 2( 514 514
Commercial Mortgage:
CRBE (6.86% due 201! 70 —
GMAC — 117
Capital leases assumed in Genuity transac — 24
Other — 3
6,02 5,21(
Less current portio — (143

$ 6,022 $ 5,067

Debt Exchanges and Repurchases

In the fourth quarter of 2004, Level 3 usleel $713 million of net proceeds from the issuasfdde Senior Secured Term Loan due in
2011 described below and $272 million from the @&sse of the 5.25% Senior Convertible Notes due 2i@ktribed below to purchase
portions of its 9.125% Senior Notes due 2008, 1E1i@& Notes due 2008, 10.5% Senior Discount NotesaD08 and 10.75% Senior Euro
Notes due 2008. The Company purchased portiorseadfutstanding notes at prices ranging from 83quetrio 89 percent of the purchas
principal balances. The net gain on the early gxtishment of the debt, including transaction cagtalized foreign currency losses and
unamortized debt issuance costs, was $50 milliothiese transactions.
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Debt I nstruments
At December 31, 2005, Level 3 was in coampdie with the covenants on all outstanding debiisses.
Senior Secured Term Loan due 2011

On December 1, 2004, Level 3 Communicatitms, as guarantor, Level 3 Financing, Inc. ("€e® Financing"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as borrower, Merrill tigrCapital Corporation, as administrative agent@oitateral agent, and certain lenders
entered into a credit agreement ("Credit Agreemgnifsuant to which the lenders extended a $73@misenior secured term loan ("Senior
Secured Term Loan") to Level 3 Financing. The teyam matures in 2011 and has a current interesiofathe London Interbank Offering
Rate ("LIBOR") plus an applicable margin of 700ibgmints. Interest on the note accrues at theethmenth LIBOR and is payable in cash
March 1, June 1, September 1 and December 1 ofyeshin arrears, beginning March 1, 2005. Therast rate was 11.42% at
December 31, 2005 and was determined at the conamamt of the interest period beginning Decemb2025.

Level 3 Financing's obligations under tieisn loan are, subject to certain exceptions, sechy certain assets of the Company; and
certain of the Company's material domestic subgélighat are engaged in the telecommunicationméss. The Company and these
subsidiaries have also guaranteed the obligatibhewel 3 Financing under the Senior Secured TeaarlL Level 3 Communications, LLC
and its material domestic subsidiaries have guaeahéand have pledged certain of their assets toestire obligations under the Senior
Secured Term Loan. Certain of the initial subsigdigmarantors have been released from their pleddegyaarantee obligations under the
Senior Secured Term Loan.

The Credit Agreement includes certain niggatovenants which restrict the ability of the Guany, Level 3 Financing and any restricted
subsidiary to engage in certain activities. ThedtrAgreement also contains certain events of defdwdoes not require the Company or
Level 3 Financing to maintain specific financiatioa.

Level 3 used the net proceeds of $713 anillafter transaction costs, to fund purchasets@isting debt securities.

Debt issuance costs of $17 million wergioally capitalized and are being amortized toriese expense over the term of the Senior
Secured Term Loan. After amortization, debt isseasasts were $15 million at December 31, 2005.

11% Senior Notes due 2008

In February 2000, Level 3 Communications, received $779 million of net proceeds, aftansaction costs, from a private offering of
$800 million aggregate principal amount of its 18%nior Notes due 2008 ("11% Senior Notes"). As eé@nber 31, 2005, a total of
$668 million aggregate principal amount of the 13&aior Notes had been repurchased. Interest amotes accrues at 11% per year and is
payable semi-annually in arrears in cash on Makchrid September 15, beginning September 15, 20@01T% Senior Notes are senior,
unsecured obligations of Level 3 Communications,,Irankingpari passuwith all existing and future senior debt. The 11&6ni®r Notes
cannot be prepaid by Level 3 Communications, laed mature on March 15, 2008. The 11%
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Senior Notes contain certain covenants, which anuther things, limit additional indebtedness, dénd payments, certain investments and
transactions with affiliates.

Debt issuance costs of $21 million wergioally capitalized and are being amortized toresé expense over the term of the 11% Se
Notes. As a result of amortization and debt repases, the capitalized debt issuance costs haverééeced to $1 million at December !
2005.

9.125% Senior Notes due 2008

In April 1998, Level 3 Communications, Imeceived $1.94 billion of net proceeds from arenffg of $2 billion aggregate principal
amount 9.125% Senior Notes Due 2008 ("9.125% Sétites"). As of December 31, 2005, a total of $&.Bdlion aggregate principal
amount of the 9.125% Senior Notes had been repsechénterest on the notes accrues at 9.125% pelayel is payable on May 1 and
November 1 each year in ca:

The 9.125% Senior Notes are subject tomgdien at the option of Level 3 Communications,.Jiie whole or in part, at any time or fr
time to time on or after May 1, 2003, plus accraad unpaid interest thereon to the redemption datejeemed during the twelve months
beginning May 1, of the years indicated below:

Year Redemption Price
2005 101.52%
2006 and thereaftt 100.000%

The 9.125% Senior Notes are senior, ungecoipligations of Level 3 Communications, Inc. kiag pari passuwith all existing and
future senior unsecured indebtedness of the ComJdmeynotes contain certain covenants, which anabngr things, limit consolidated debt,
dividend payments, and transactions with affiliatesvel 3 Communications, Inc. used the net pros@édhe note offering in connection w
the implementation of its business plan.

Debt issuance costs of $65 million wergioally capitalized and are being amortized toriese expense over the term of the 9.125%
Senior Notes. As a result of amortization and deptirchases, the capitalized debt issuance coststiegen reduced to $7 million at
December 31, 2005.

10.5% Senior Discount Notes due 2008

In December 1998, Level 3 Communications, sold $834 million aggregate principal amounnaturity of 10.5% Senior Discount
Notes Due 2008 ("10.5% Senior Discount Notes"). 3&les proceeds of $500 million, excluding dehiasee costs, were recorded as -
term debt. As of December 31, 2005, a total of $®@0on aggregate principal amount of the 10.5%i8eDiscount Notes had been
repurchased. Interest on the 10.5% Senior Disddotds accreted at a rate of 10.5% per annum, conggalisemiannually, to an aggregate
principal amount of $834 million ($144 million afteepurchases) at December 1, 2003. Commencingniieel, 2003, interest on the 10.
Senior Discount Notes accrued at the rate of 1B#@nnum and is payable in cash semiannuallyréaes.

The 10.5% Senior Discount Notes are sultigertdemption at the option of Level 3 Communimasi, Inc., in whole or in part, at any
time or from time to time at the following redengtiprices (expressed as percentages of accreteel) y@lis accrued and unpaid interest
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thereon to the redemption date, if redeemed duhiedgwelve months beginning December 1, of thes/eaticated below:

Year Redemption Price
2005 101.7%%
2006 and thereaftt 100.0(%

These notes are senior unsecured obligatbhevel 3 Communications, Inc., rankipgri passuwith all existing and future senior
unsecured indebtedness of Level 3 Communicatioes, The 10.5% Senior Discount Notes contain cexairenants which, among other
things, restrict or limit the Company's abilityitewur additional debt, make certain restricted peyts, pay dividends, enter into sale and
leaseback transactions, enter into transactiorfs afitliates, and sell assets or merge with anotenpany.

Debt issuance costs of $14 million wergioally capitalized and are being amortized overtdrm of the 10.5% Senior Discount Notes.
As a result of amortization and debt repurchasescapitalized debt issuance costs have been mdudi million at December 31, 2005.

10.75% Senior Euro Notes due 2008

In February 2000, Level 3 Communications, received €488 million ($478 million when issphefinet proceeds, after debt issuance
costs, from an offering of €500 million aggregatmgipal amount 10.75% Senior Euro Notes due 2008.75% Senior Euro Notes"). As of
December 31, 2005, a total of €450 million aggregmincipal amount of the 10.75% Senior Euro Nbisd been repurchased. Interest on the
notes accrues at 10.75% per year and is payaBlerivs semi-annually in arrears on March 15 andedelper 15 each year beginning on
September 15, 2000. The 10.75% Senior Euro Notesairredeemable by Level 3 Communications, Inor po maturity. Debt issuance
costs of €12 million were originally capitalizeddaare being amortized over the term of the 10.78¥#i@® Euro Notes. As a result of
amortization and debt repurchases, the net camthliebt issuance costs have been reduced tdvées€1 million at December 31, 2005.

The 10.75% Senior Euro Notes are senigecured obligations of the Company, rankpagi passwwith all existing and future senior
debt. The 10.75% Senior Euro Notes contain cedauenants, which among other things, limit addiidndebtedness, dividend payments,
certain investments and transactions with affifate

The issuance of the €500 million 10.75%i&eBuro Notes has been designated as, and igigfexs, an economic hedge against the
investment in certain of the Company's foreign glibses. Therefore, foreign currency gains anddssresulting from the translation of the
debt have been recorded in other comprehensivenia¢toss) to the extent of translation gains oségson such investment. The 10.75%
Senior Euro Notes were valued, based on curreftasge rates, at $59 million in the Company's codatgd financial statements at
December 31, 2005. The difference between the iogrmalue at December 31, 2005 and the value aars=, after repurchases, is recorded
in other comprehensive income.
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2.875% Convertible Senior Notes due 2010

In July 2003, the Company completed theraify of $374 million aggregate principal amounttsef2.875% Convertible Senior Notes
due 2010 ("2.875% Convertible Senior Notes") iruaderwritten public offering pursuant to the Comyarshelf registration statement.
Interest on the notes accrues at 2.875% per yehisgrayable semi-annually in arrears in cash onaky 15 and July 15, beginning
January 15, 2004. The 2.875% Convertible Senioedlate senior, unsecured obligations of Level 3@onications, Inc., rankingari passt
with all existing and future senior unsecured d&he 2.875% Convertible Senior Notes contain certavenants, which among other things,
limit additional liens on assets of the Company.

The 2.875% Convertible Senior Notes arevedible into shares of the Company's common s&@kconversion rate of $7.18 per share,
subject to certain adjustments. On or after July2097, Level 3, at its option, may redeem for ca@sbr a portion of the notes. Level 3 may
exercise this option only if the current marketprfor the Level 3 common stock for at least 2@itrg days within any 30 consecutive trad
day period exceeds prices ranging from 170% ottmersion price on July 15, 2007 decreasing t&d.60the conversion price on or after
July 15, 2009. Level 3 would also be obligateddg the holders of the redeemed notes a cash arequat to the present value of all
remaining scheduled interest payments.

Level 3 used the net proceeds of $361 onillafter transaction costs, for working capitabital expenditures and other general corp¢
purposes, including new product development, dgiinchases and acquisitions.

Debt issuance costs of $13 million wergioally capitalized and are being amortized toreéé expense over the term of the 2.875%
Convertible Senior Notes. As a result of amort@atithe capitalized debt issuance costs have legliced to $8 million at December 31,
2005.

12.875% Senior Discount Notes due 2010

In February 2000, Level 3 Communications, kold in a private offering $675 million aggregarincipal amount at maturity of its
12.875% Senior Discount Notes due 2010 ("12.8758dB®iscount Notes"). The sale proceeds of $360anj excluding debt issuance
costs, were recorded as long-term debt. As of Deeerdl, 2005, a total of $187 million aggregatagpal amount of the 12.875% Senior
Discount Notes had been repurchased, leaving $488maggregate principal amount outstanding. legt on the 12.875% Senior Discount
Notes accreted at a rate of 12.875% per year, cangeal sen-annually, to an aggregate principal amount of $##8on on March 15, 200!
Cash interest did not accrue on the 12.875% S@&igmount Notes prior to March 15, 2005. Commenditagch 15, 2005, interest on the
12.875% Senior Discount Notes accrues at the fat2.875% per year and is payable in cash semidalhynia arrears. For the period ended
March 15, 2005, $13 million of accretion was adttedutstanding debt balance to arrive at the faceuat of the 12.875% Senior Discount
Notes. The $13 million of accretion was recordethterest expense during 20(

The 12.875% Senior Discount Notes are stiltperedemption at the option of Level 3 Commuti@ss, Inc., in whole or in part, at any
time or from time to time on or after March 15, 80Qevel 3 Communications, Inc. may redeem the 1528 Senior Discount Notes at the
redemption prices set forth below, plus interdsiny, to the redemption date. The following priees for
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12.875% Senior Discount Notes redeemed during 2R@dnth period commencing on March 15 of the ysatdorth below and are
expressed as percentages of principal amount.

Year Redemption Price

2005 106.43%
2006 104.29%
2007 102.14%
2008 and thereaftt 100.00%

The 12.875% Senior Discount Notes are senitsecured obligations of the Company, rankiag passuwith all existing and future
senior debt. The 12.875% Senior Discount Notesatormertain covenants, which among other thingst kkdditional indebtedness, dividend
payments, certain investments and transactionsaffitfates.

Debt issuance costs of $9 million were ioadly capitalized and are being amortized to iestiexpense over the term of the 12.875%
Senior Discount Notes. As a result of amortizatiod debt repurchases, the capitalized debt issw@nste have been reduced to $3 million at
December 31, 2005.

11.25% Senior Euro Notes due 2010

In February 2000, Level 3 Communications, received €293 million ($285 million when issyefinet proceeds, after debt issuance
costs, from an offering of €300 million aggregatmgipal amount 11.25% Senior Euro Notes due 2010.25% Senior Euro Notes"). As of
December 31, 2005, a total of €196 million aggregmincipal amount of the 11.25% Senior Euro Nbi@s been repurchased. Interest on the
notes accrues at 11.25% per year and is payablieasgmally in arrears in Euros on March 15 and Smyier 15 each year beginning
September 15, 2000.

The 11.25% Senior Euro Notes are subjertdemption at the option of Level 3 Communicatjdns., in whole or in part, at any time
from time to time on or after March 15, 2005. THe2b% Senior Euro Notes may be redeemed at thenggden prices set forth below, plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redempmtate. The following prices are for 11.25% Seiiaro Notes redeemed during the 12-
month period commencing on March 15 of the year$osth below, and are expressed as percentagasnaipal amount.

Year Redemption Price

2005 105.62'%
2006 103.75%
2007 101.87%
2008 and thereaftt 100.00%

Debt issuance costs af ®illion were originally capitalized and are beiagortized over the term of the 11.25% Senior ENmtes. As i
result of amortization and debt repurchases, tpéalezed debt issuance costs have been reducgtnaillion at December 31, 2005. The
11.25% Senior Euro Notes are senior, unsecuredailiins of the Company, rankipari passuwith all existing and future senior debt. The
11.25% Senior Euro Notes contain certain covenaritih among other things, limit additional indediiess, dividend payments, certain
investments and transactions with affiliates.
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The issuance of the €300 million 11.25%i&eBuro Notes has been designated as, and igigéexs, an economic hedge against the
investment in certain of the Company's foreign glibges. Therefore, foreign currency gains anddssresulting from the translation of the
debt have been recorded in other comprehensivenia¢toss) to the extent of translation gains oségson such net investment. The 11.25%
Senior Euro Notes were valued, based on curretitagxge rates, at $123 million in the Company's fierstatements at December 31, 2005.
The difference between the carrying value at Deeerth, 2005 and the value at issuance, after rbpaes, is recorded in other
comprehensive income.

11.25% Senior Notes due 2010

In February 2000, Level 3 Communications, received $243 million of net proceeds, aftansaction costs, from a private offering of
$250 million aggregate principal amount of its BE2Senior Notes due 2010 ("11.25% Senior Notess)oDecember 31, 2005, a total of
$154 million aggregate principal amount of the 5%2Senior Notes had been repurchased. Interesteomdtes accrues at 11.25% per year
and is payable semi-annually in arrears on MarchritbSeptember 15 in cash beginning Septembei00, 2

The 11.25% Senior Notes are subject tomgdien at the option of Level 3 Communications,.Jiie whole or in part, at any time or fr
time to time on or after March 15, 2005. Level S r@@ounications, Inc. may redeem the 11.25% Senioefat the redemption prices set forth
below, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if anyhéoredemption date. The following prices arelfbr25% Senior Notes redeemed during the
12-month period commencing on March 15 of the ysatgorth below:

Year Redemption Price

2005 105.62'%
2006 103.75%
2007 101.87%
2008 and thereaftt 100.000%

The 11.25% Senior Notes are senior, unsecoipligations of the Company, rankipgri passuwith all existing and future senior debt.
The 11.25% Senior Notes contain certain covenartsh among other things, limit additional indelieds, dividend payments, certain
investments and transactions with affiliates.

Debt issuance costs of $7 million were ioadly capitalized and are being amortized to ies¢iexpense over the term of the 11.25%
Senior Notes. As a result of amortization and deptirchases, the capitalized debt issuance coststigen reduced to $1 million at
December 31, 2005.

10.75% Senior Notes due 2011

In October 2003, Level 3 Financing recei$d86 million of net proceeds from a private plaeatoffering of $500 million aggregate
principal amount of its 10.75% Senior Notes duel2(010.75% Senior Notes"). Interest on the noteswums at 10.75% per year and is
payable on April 15 and October 15 each year ih.cBese notes are guaranteed by Level 3 Commionsat LC and Level 3
Communications, Inc. (See Note 21).
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The 10.75% Senior Notes are subject tomgdien at the option of Level 3 Financing, in wholein part, at any time or from time to
time on or after October 15, 2007, plus accrueduanmhid interest thereon to the redemption datedéemed during the twelve months
beginning October 15, of the years indicated below:

Year Redemption Price

2007 105.37%
2008 102.68%
2009 and thereaftt 100.00%

The 10.75% Senior Notes are senior, unsecoiligations of Level 3 Financing, rankipgri passuwith all existing and future senior
unsecured indebtedness of Level 3 Financing. Thesreontain certain covenants, which among othiegsh limit consolidated debt, divide
payments, and transactions with affiliates. Thepmeteeds of the offering were used to repay ansoomtstanding under a senior secured
credit facility.

Debt issuance costs of $14 million wergioally capitalized and are being amortized torie¢é expense over the term of the 10.75%
Senior Notes. As a result of amortization, the t@diged debt issuance costs have been reducedtmiflion at December 31, 2005.

10% Convertible Senior Notes due 2011

In April 2005, Level 3 Communications, Imeceived $877 million of net proceeds, after givaffect to offering expenses, from an
offering of $880 million aggregate principal amowifiits 10% Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 ("10&fvertible Senior Notes") to
institutional investors. Interest on the notes aesrat 10% per year and will be payable senmually on May 1 and November 1 beginning
November 1, 2005. The 10% Convertible Senior Natesunsecured unsubordinated obligations of Lev@®munications, Inc., rankir
pari passiwith all existing and future unsecured unsubordidatebt of Level 3 Communications, Inc. The 10% \@otible Senior Notes
contain certain covenants which limit additionahlé on assets of the Company.

The 10% Convertible Senior Notes will bewertible by holders at any time after JanuaryQ72(or sooner if certain corporate events
occur) into shares of Level 3 common stock at avesion price of $3.60 per share (subject to adjast in certain events). This is equival
to a conversion rate of approximately 277.77 shpees$1,000 principal amount of notes. In additioiders of the 10% Convertible Senior
Notes will have the right to require the Companyepurchase the notes upon the occurrence of ggeharcontrol, as defined, at a price
100% of the principal amount of the notes plus aedrinterest and a make whole premium.

On or after May 1, 2009, Level 3, at itdiop, may redeem for cash all or a portion of thées. The 10% Convertible Senior Notes are
subject to redemption at the option of Level 3yhmole or in part, at any time or from time to tinog&, not more than sixty nor less than thirty
days' notice, on or
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after May 1, 2009, plus accrued and unpaid inteheston to the redemption date, if redeemed duhiagwelve months beginning May 1, of
the years indicated below:

Year Redemption Price
2009 103.33(%
2010 and thereaftt 101.67%

Debt issuance costs of $3 million were ioadly capitalized and are being amortized to iestexpense over the term of the 10%
Convertible Senior Notes. As a result of amortmatithe capitalized debt issuance costs have leelrced to $2 million at December 31,
2005.

5.25% Convertible Senior Notes due 2011

On December 2, 2004, Level 3 Communicatitms completed the offering of $345 million aggage principal amount of its 5.25%
Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 ("5.25% Convkrt8enior Notes") in a private offering. Interesttbe notes accrues at 5.25% per year
and is payable semi-annually in arrears in casbume 15 and December 15, beginning June 15, 20@5525% Convertible Senior Notes
are senior, unsecured obligations of Level 3 Comioations, Inc., rankingari passuwith all existing and future senior unsecured d#bt
Level 3 Communications, Inc. The 5.25% Convertidémior Notes contain certain covenants which ladiitional liens on assets of the
Company.

The 5.25% Convertible Senior Notes are edtibe, at the option of the holders, into sharethe Company's common stock at a
conversion rate of $3.98 per share, subject taireadjustments. Upon conversion, the Companyhade the right to deliver cash in lieu of
shares of its common stock, or a combination ofi gasl shares of common stock. In addition, holdéthe 5.25% Convertible Senior Notes
will have the right to require the Company to refhase the notes upon the occurrence of a charapmirol, as defined, at a price of 100% of
the principal amount plus accrued interest and keméole premium.

On or after December 15, 2008, Level 3tsabption, may redeem for cash all or a portiotheaf notes. The 5.25% Convertible Senior
Notes are subject to redemption at the option @EL8, in whole or in part, at any time or from &rto time, on not more than 60 nor less t
30 days' notice, on or after December 15, 200& atcrued and unpaid interest thereon to the retitemgbate, if redeemed during the twelve
months beginning December 15, of the years indichétow:

Year Redemption Price

2008 102.25(%
2009 101.500%
2010 and thereaftt 100.75(%

In connection with the issuance of the sptevel 3 used approximately $62 million of theé peoceeds of the offering to enter into
convertible note hedge and warrant transactioris iggpect to the Company's common stock to redwepdtential dilution from conversion
of the notes. Level 3 used the remainder of thereteeds from this offering to fund repurchaseissoéxisting debt securities due in 2008.
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Under the terms of the convertible notegeedrrangement (the "Convertible Note Hedge") W#rrill Lynch International ("Merrill"),
Level 3 paid $125 million for a forward purchaseiop contract under which it is entitled to purchd@om Merrill a fixed number of shares
Level 3 common stock (at a current price per sb&fs.98). In the event of the conversion of théespthis forward purchase option contract
allows the Company to purchase, at a fixed prieeaktp the implicit conversion price of shares exsunder the convertible notes, a number
of shares equal to the shares that Level 3 issuasibte holder upon conversion. Settlement teffittsioforward purchase option allow the
Company to elect cash or share settlement bas#te@ettlement option it chooses in settling theveosion feature of the notes. The
Company accounted for the Convertible Note Hedgsyant to the guidance in EITF Q@ "Accounting for Derivative Financial Instrums
Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in a Compa@yis Stock." Accordingly, the $125 million purchaséce of the forward stock purchase
option contract was recorded as a reduction toalmaed stockholders' equity.

Level 3 also sold to Merrill a warrant (thWarrant") to purchase shares of Level 3 commonkstThe Warrant is currently exercisable
for 86,596,380 shares of Level 3 common stockatreent exercise price of $6.00 per share. Levek®ived $63 million cash from Merrill
return for the sale of this forward share purchastéon contract. Merrill cannot exercise the Watnamess and until a conversion event
occurs. Level 3 has the option of settling the \&iairin cash or shares of Level 3 common stock.Jdmpany accounted for the sale of the
Warrant as the sale of a permanent equity instramarsuant to the guidance in EITF 00-19. Accortlinthe $63 million sales price of the
forward stock purchase option contract was recoedean increase to consolidated stockholders'yequit

The Convertible Note Hedge and the Wareaonhomically allow Level 3 to acquire sufficiensbs of common stock from Merrill to
meet its obligation to deliver common stock uponwasion by the holder, unless the common stodemkceeds $6.00. When the fair value
of the Level 3 common stock exceeds such pricectiéracts have an offsetting economic impact andordingly, will no longer be effecti
as a hedge of the dilutive impact of possible cosive.

Debt issuance costs of $11 million wergioally capitalized and are being amortized torie¢e expense over the term of the 5.25%
Convertible Senior Notes. As a result of amortaatidebt issuance costs were $9 million at Decer®bgP005.

9% Convertible Senior Discount Notes due 2013

In October 2003, Level 3 completed the exge of approximately $352 million (book value)ebt and accrued interest outstanding
of October 24, 2003, for approximately 20 millidrases of Level 3 common stock and $208 million fbealue) of a new issue of 9%
Convertible Senior Discount Notes.

Level 3 Communications, Inc. issued $29Bioni aggregate principal amount at maturity of @nvertible Senior Discount Notes.
Interest on the 9% Convertible Senior Discount N@tecretes at a rate of 9% per annum, compoundeidrseually, to an aggregate principal
amount of $295 million by October 15, 2007. Cadbriest will not accrue on the 9% Convertible SeBimcount Notes prior to October 15,
2007; however, Level 3 Communications, Inc. magteie commence the accrual of cash interest ooudditanding 9% Convertible Senior
Discount Notes on or after October 15, 2004, inclwfdase the outstanding principal amount at mgtofieach 9% Convertible Senior
Discount Note
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will, on the elected commencement date, be redtectte accreted value of the 9% Convertible SeDiscount Note as of that date and cash
interest shall be payable on that Note on Apribh8 October 15 thereafter. Commencing October @37 2interest on the 9% Convertible
Senior Discount Notes will accrue at the rate of @6 annum and will be payable in cash semiannirallyrears. Accrued interest expense
for the year ended December 31, 2005 on the 9% &thle Senior Discount Notes of less than $1 miillwas added to long-term debt.

The 9% Convertible Senior Discount Notes@nvertible into shares of the Company's commacksat a conversion rate of $9.99 per
share, subject to certain adjustments. The totalb®u of shares issuable upon conversion will rdrga approximately 25 million to
30 million shares depending upon the total acangpidor to conversion. On or after October 15, 2008/el 3, at its option, may redeem for
cash all or a portion of the notes. Level 3 mayreise this option only if the current market prfoe at least 20 trading days within any 30
consecutive trading day period exceeds 140% ofdheersion price on October 15, 2008. This amolilhbe decreased to 130% and 120%
on October 15, 2008 and 2009, respectively, ifititeal holders sell greater than 33.33% of theasotevel 3 is also obligated to pay the
holders of the redeemed notes a cash amount extred present value of all remaining scheduled@stepayments.

The 9% Convertible Senior Discount Noteb g subject to conversion into common stock atdption of the holder, in whole or in
part, at any time or from time to time after 18@slafter the issue date at the following convergiooes (expressed as percentages of act
value) plus accrued and unpaid interest theredinet@onversion date, of the time periods indicéiedw:

Year Conversion Price

October 15, 200- April 14, 2006 83.93%
April 15, 2006- October 14, 200 87.70%
October 15, 200- April 14, 2007 91.65¢%
April 15, 2007- October 14, 200 95.78(%
October 15, 2007 and thereat 100.09(%

These notes are senior unsecured obligatbhevel 3 Communications, Inc., rankipgri passuwith all existing and future senior
unsecured indebtedness of Level 3 Communicatios, |

6% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009

In September 1999, the Company receive® $7ilion of proceeds, after transaction costsifran offering of $823 million aggregate
principal amount of its 6% Convertible Subordinakémtes Due 2009 ("Subordinated Notes 2009"). THsoBlinated Notes 2009 are
unsecured and subordinated to all existing anddutenior indebtedness of the Company. Intereti@®ubordinated Notes 2009 accrues at
6% per year and is payable each year in cash onhMid and September 15. The principal amount oStitordinated Notes 2009 will be ¢
on September 15, 2009. The Subordinated Notes 2@¥%be converted into shares of common stock o€thrapany at any time prior to
maturity, unless previously redeemed, repurchaséideoCompany has caused the conversion rightspioee The conversion rate is 15.3401
shares per each $1,000 principal amount of SubatelinNotes 2009, subject to adjustment in certatumstances. On or after Septembel
2002, Level 3, at its option, may cause the conwensghts to expire. Level 3 may exercise thisiaponly if the current market price exce:
approximately $91.27 (which represents 140% oftreversion price) for 20 trading days
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within any period of 30 consecutive trading dayduding the last day of that period. As of DecemBkr2005, less than $1 million of debt
had been converted into shares of common stockf Recember 31, 2005, a total of $461 million aggte principal amount of the
Subordinated Notes 2009 had been repurchased bamged for common stock.

Debt issuance costs of $25 million wergioally capitalized and are being amortized toresé expense over the term of the
Subordinated Notes 2009. As a result of amortinadiod debt repurchases, the capitalized debt issuzosts have been reduced to $4 million
at December 31, 2005.

6% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2010

In February 2000, the Company received $88on of net proceeds, after transaction costsn a public offering of $863 million
aggregate principal amount of its 6% Convertible@dinated Notes due 2010 ("Subordinated Notes'20Tfe Subordinated Notes 2010
are unsecured and subordinated to all existingfande senior indebtedness of the Company. Inteneshe Subordinated Notes 2010 accrues
at 6% per year and is payable semi-annually in casiarch 15 and September 15 beginning Septenthé&0DO0. The principal amount of
the Subordinated Notes 2010 will be due on March?030.

The Subordinated Notes 2010 may be condénte shares of common stock of Level 3 Commuiacat Inc. at any time prior to the
close of business on the business day immediatelyeping maturity, unless previously redeemed,rekmsed or Level 3
Communications, Inc. has caused the conversiotsrighexpire. The conversion rate is 7.416 shaeegach $1,000 principal amount of
Subordinated Notes 2010, subject to adjustmergitain events.

On or after March 18, 2003, Level 3, abitgion, may cause the conversion rights to exjhieeel 3 may exercise this option only if the
current market price exceeds approximately $18@vch represents 140% of the conversion pricepfdeast 20 trading days within any
period of 30 consecutive trading days, including ltst trading day of that period. As of Decemlder2D05, no debt had been converted into
shares of common stock. As of December 31, 200&abof $350 million aggregate principal amountté Subordinated Notes 2010 had
been repurchased or exchanged for common stock.

Debt issue costs of $27 million were orédiy capitalized and are being amortized to inteegpense over the term of the Subordinated
Notes. As a result of amortization and debt repases, the capitalized debt issuance costs haverééeced to $6 million at December !
2005.

Commercial Mortgage:
GMAC

In June 2000, HQ Realty, Inc. (a wholly-adrsubsidiary of the Company) entered into a $1B@®mfloating-rate loan ("GMAC
Mortgage") providing secured, non-recourse delfinence the Company's world headquarters.

On June 30, 2005, the GMAC Mortgage matamedi HQ Realty, Inc. repaid the outstanding balari&i116 million with $103 million in
cash and $13 million in restricted securities.
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CBRE

In the third quarter of 2005, the Compaagnpleted a refinancing of the mortgage on its caf@oheadquarters. On September 27, 2005
HQ Realty, Inc. entered into a $70 million loaraatinitial fixed rate of 6.86% through 2010, theicipated repayment date, as defined in the
loan agreement ("CBRE Commercial Mortgage"). A&810 through maturity in 2015, the interest ratk adjust to the greater of 9.86% or
the five year U.S. Treasury rate plus 300 basistpoHQ Realty, Inc. received $66 million of nebgeeds after transaction costs and
deposited $2 million into restricted cash accotimtsuture facility improvements and property taxel€) Realty, Inc. is required to make
interest only payments in the first year with maytbrincipal payments beginning in the second yeesed on a 30-year amortization
schedule.

Debt issuance costs of $1 million were tdigied and are being amortized as interest expevesethe term of the CBRE Commercial
Mortgage.

The assets of HQ Realty Inc. are not alskelto satisfy any third party obligations otheartithose of HQ Realty, Inc. In addition, the
assets of the Company and its subsidiaries otlaerttQ Realty, Inc. are not available to satisfydbigations of HQ Realty, Inc.

Genuity Capital Lease Obligations

As part of the Genuity transaction thaseld on February 4, 2003, the Company assumedrceetpital lease obligations of Genuity for
operating equipment. The Company used a 15% discatento present value the minimum lease paymespsesenting the effective interest
rate that could be obtained by the Company formalar agreement, resulting in a capital lease alian of $309 million. The capital lease
agreements also contained provisions whereby L&wals required to purchase approximately $30 milibO&M services and network
capacity ratably over the lease term, which wecended as prepaid assets (recognized as costafuewver the term of the agreement) and
other current and noncurrent liabilities.

On April 6, 2004, a bankruptcy court appda settlement agreement between the Company leegiahce Telecom, Inc.
("Allegiance™). The agreement terminates a mulasylease which was one of the capital lease oltigeitassumed in the Genuity acquisition
in 2003 described above, whereby the Company wigatdéd to lease approximately 470,000 managed mqautats from Allegiance. The
Company paid approximately $54 million and assukehiance's obligations under an agreement with&elecom, Inc. to extinguish tl
capital lease obligation and recognized a gainldf7dmillion on the transaction during the secondrtgr of 2004.

The future minimum lease payments undec#patal lease obligations as of December 31, 28Rduding the O&M and network
capacity obligations were adjusted based upon tlegiance settlement and the remaining capitadedsigation was $24 million at
December 31, 2004. The remaining obligations utitkecapital lease agreement were paid in 2005.

Junior Convertible Subordinated Notes

In July 2002, the Company sold $500 millaggregate principal amount of its 9% Junior Cofilvler Subordinated Notes due 2012 to
entities controlled by three institutions: Longl®afrtners Funds, Berkshire Hathaway, Inc., and IMggon, Inc. The notes, which had a 10-
year maturity, paid 9% cash interest annually, plyguarterly beginning October 15, 2002. The natee convertible, ¢
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the option of the holders, into Level 3 common ktatany time at a conversion price of $3.41 (scitfje certain customary adjustments). The
notes were convertible at the Company's optiondotovertible preferred stock under certain condgiand circumstances. The convertible
notes ranked junior to substantially all of the €e% Communications, Inc.'s outstanding indebtesines

In January 2003 and April 2003, an aggregat$43 million principal amount of the Junior @erntible Subordinated Notes were
converted into approximately 13 million shares ef/&l 3 common stock. Pursuant to the original cosiga terms, the holder received
293.255 shares of Level 3 common stock for eacB(RLprincipal amount of notes converted. The dedst eonverted pursuant to the original
conversion terms; therefore, no gain or loss wesgeized on the transaction.

In June 2003, the remaining $457 milliogegate principal amount of the Company's 9% Judanvertible Subordinated Notes due
2012 were converted into approximately 161 milltrares of Level 3 common stock with a market valugpproximately $1.135 billion. Ti
market value of securities issuable pursuant tgirad conversion privileges on the conversion deds approximately $945 million.
Therefore, pursuant to the provisions of SFAS Nh.d&bt conversion expense of $190 million wasnad®d in the second quarter of 2003.
Approximately $7 million of foregone accrued intgréhrough the date of the conversion was creddexdiditional paidn capital. In additior
approximately $10 million of unamortized debt isste costs were charged to additional paid-in chaga@ result of the conversion to
common stock. The total increase in common stock@sult of this conversion and related debt csioe expenses was $644 million.

Future Debt Maturities:

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt tautding as of December 31, 2005 are as follows(iions): 2006—3$0; 2007—3$1 million;
2008—%$1,290 million; 2009—%$363 million, 2010—%$1,6@2lion and $2,707 million thereafter. These métes do not reflect the debt
exchange transaction completed in January 2006rellieertain notes maturing in 2008 were exchamgedash and a new series of notes
maturing in 2010 (See Note 22).

(15) Asset Retirement Obligations

In June 2001, the FASB approved SFAS N8. BFAS No. 143 establishes accounting standardefognition and measurement of a
liability for an asset retirement obligation ané tissociated asset retirement cost. The fair \adladiability for an asset retirement obligation
is to be recognized in the period in which it isurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value camhade. The associated retirement costs are
capitalized and included as part of the carryingeaf the long-lived asset and amortized overutheful life of the asset. SFAS No. 143 was
effective for the Company beginning on January0D3 The Company's coal mining business had preliaccrued, as a component of cost
of revenue, an estimate of future reclamation lighiThe reclamation liability is included in nomeent liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheets. The net effect of the adoption of SFASIM8.to the Company's coal mining business as afalgri, 2003 was a decrease in
noncurrent liabilities of approximately $5 milligwhich is being amortized to expense) and wasatdtbas a cumulative-effect adjustment in
the 2003 consolidated statement of operations.

The communications business has enteredertain colocation and office space leases wlydtéb required upon termination of the
lease, to remove the leasehold improvements anchréte leased space to its original condition. Toeenpany has also entered into right-of-
way agreements for
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its intercity and metropolitan networks that maguiee the removal of the conduit upon terminatibthe agreement. Upon adoption of this
standard on January 1, 2003, the Company alsodedabligations and corresponding assets of apmiately $31 million for these lease and
right—of-way agreements.

Asset retirement obligation accretion exggeaf $13 million, $11 million and $12 million weescorded during the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectivelyltieg in total asset retirement obligations, irdihg reclamation costs for the coal
business, of $181 million, $138 million and $121liom at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respelgti The total asset retirement
obligation as of December 31, 2005 includes Wibragset retirement obligation of $35 million.

Expense of $10 million related to the cominations business was recorded in selling, gererdladministrative expenses on the
consolidated statement of operations for the yede@ December 31, 2005. Expense of $3 millionedla the Company's coal mining
business was recorded in cost of revenue on theotidated statement of operations for the year @mkcember 31, 2005. In addition, the
coal mining business incurred $3 million of addi@breclamation liabilities and incurred costsvimrk performed on asset retirement
obligations of $2 million.

Expense of $7 million related to the comiations business was recorded in selling, gersrdladministrative expenses on the
consolidated statement of operations for the yede@ December 31, 2004. Expense of $4 millionedl&a the Company's coal mining
business was recorded in cost of revenue on theotidated statement of operations for the year @kcember 31, 2004. In addition, the
coal mining business incurred $4 million of addi@breclamation liabilities and incurred costsvimrk performed on asset retirement
obligations of $1 million.

Expense of $8 million related to the cominations business was recorded in selling, geraradladministrative expenses on the
consolidated statement of operations for the yede@ December 31, 2003. Expense of $4 millionedlia the Company's coal mining
business was recorded in cost of revenue on theotidated statement of operations for the year émkrember 31, 2003. This was partially
offset by $1 million of gains recognized on settirnof obligations attributable to the use of int#mresources rather than third parties to
perform reclamation work. In addition, the coal mmbusiness incurred $3 million of additional eoktion liabilities and incurred costs for
work performed on asset retirement obligationsdfdllion.

The Company had noncurrent restricted ostpproximately $56 million and $52 million seidesto fund the reclamation liabilities at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(16) Employee Benefit Plans

The Company adopted the recognition promsiof SFAS No. 123 in 1998. Under SFAS No. 128 fdir value of an option or other
stock-based compensation (as computed in accorddgtitaccepted option valuation models) on the déigrant is amortized over the
vesting periods of the options in accordance Wil$B Interpretation 28, "Accounting for Stock Appiaon Rights and Other Variable
Stock Option or Award Plans." Although the recoigmitof the value of the instruments results in cengation or professional expenses in an
entity's financial statements, the expense difien® other compensation and professional expemst®t these charges may not be settled in
cash, but rather, are generally settled throughaisse of common stock.
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The adoption of SFAS No. 123 has resultethaterial non-cash charges to operations sine@aldption in 1998, and the adoption of
SFAS No. 123R will continue to result in materiahacash charges to operations in the future. Thauatof the non-cash charges will be
dependent upon a number of factors, including tirabrer of grants, the fair value of each grant estiduh at the time of its award and the
number of grants that ultimately vest.

The Company recognized in the consolidatatement of operations a total of $57 million, $dilion and $86 million of non-cash
compensation in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectitetjuded in discontinued operations is non-cashprmmation expense of $2 million,
$2 million and $4 million in 2005, 2004 and 200&8spectively. In addition, the Company capitalizcdllion, $2 million and $4 million in
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, of non-cash emsgtion for those employees and contractors direatolved in the construction of the
network, installation of customers or developmerthe business support systems.

The following table summarizes non-cash gensation expense and capitalized non-cash commn$ar the three years ended
December 31, 2005.

(dollars in millions) 2005 2004 2003
Warrants $ — % — % 9
0SsO 18 16 30
C-0SO — 1 15
Restricted Stoc 19 4 2
Shareworks Match Ple () 4 8
401 (k) Discretionary Grant Ple 9 5 11
401(k) Match Expens 15 18 15
59 48 90
Capitalized Noncash Compensat 2 2 (4)
57 46 86
Discontinued Operatio—(i)Structure () 2 (4)

$ 55 % 44 3% 82

Non-qualified Stock Options and Warrants

During the second quarter of 2004, the Camypssued approximately 374,000 warrants to audtarg as payment for future consulting
financial advisory services. The warrants allow¢basultant to purchase common stock at $4.00tmesThe warrants vested equally in
quarterly installments over twelve months. The waats expire on April 1, 2011. The Company recoidsd than $1 million of expense
during 2004 for these warrants. As of Decembe2B04, these warrants were fully expensed. Purdoght relevant accounting guidance,
the fair value of these warrants is determinedheir respective vesting dates. At December 31, 20@4fair value of the warrants was
$1 million and was calculated using the Black-Sehalaluation model with a risk free interest rét8.82%, an expiration date of April 1,
2011, and a volatility rate of 75% over the term.

During the first quarter of 2003, the Compassued approximately 684,000 fully vested wasan a consultant as payment primarily
for acquisition-related consulting services. Therasmts allow the
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consultant to purchase common stock at $4.90 @eesiithe warrants were fully vested at issuancenahéxpire on January 1, 2013. The
Company recorded approximately $1 million of expgedsring 2003 for these warrants. The fair valuthefwarrants at the time they vested
was approximately $1 million and was calculateshgshe Black-Scholes valuation model with a rigefinterest rate of 4.12%, an expiration
date of January 1, 2013, and a volatility rate@¥/over the term.

In March 2003, the Company issued approtélgdl.7 million warrants to a consultant as paybfenfuture consulting financial
advisory services. The warrants allow the consuttapurchase common stock at $5.16 per sharewghents vested equally in quarterly
installments over twelve months. The warrants exmarch 31, 2010. The Company recorded less thaniitn and $6 million of expense
during 2004 and 2003, respectively, for these wastal he fair value of these warrants when thewbecfully vested was approximately
$6 million and was calculated using the Black-Seblalaluation model with a risk free interest r&t8.6%, an expiration date of March 31,
2010, and a volatility rate of 75% over the term.

As of December 31, 2005, there were appnately 14.8 million warrants outstanding rangingiites from $4.00 to $60.06. Of these
warrants, all were exercisable at December 31, 200ba weighted average exercise price of $7.95yzgrant.

The Company has not granted NQSOs sinc@.2000f December 31, 2005, all NQSOs previousntgd were fully vested and
expensed.
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Transactions involving NQSOs granted ararsarized as follows:

Weighted
Exercise Price Average
Units Per Unit Exercise Price
Balance December 31, 20 9,795,23I $.12-$84.7F $ 6.6(
Options grante: — — —
Options cancelle (352,719 6.50- 42.0C 24.7¢
Options exercise (521,15) 1.76- 6.5C 5.4¢
Balance December 31, 20 8,921,36. A2- 84.7¢ 5.9t
Options grante: — — —
Options cancelle (361,500 5.43- 84.7¢ 15.7C
Options exercise — — —
Balance December 31, 20 8,559,86: A2- 21.6¢ 5.8t
Options grante: — — —
Options cancelle (606,15() 5.43- 8.0C 11.3¢
Options exercise (61,169 0.12- 0.1Z 0.12
Options expiret (1,746,501 4.04- 21.6¢ 6.3€
Balance December 31, 20 6,146,04 $1.76- $8.0( $ 5.7t
Options exercisabl¢
December 31, 20C 8,921,36. $.12-384.7F % 5.9t
December 31, 200 8,559,86: A2- 21.6¢ 5.8t
December 31, 2005 6,146,041 $1.76 - $8.0( $ 5.7t
Options Outstanding
and Exercisable
Weighted
Number Average
Outstanding Remaining Weighted
as of Life Average
Range of Exercise Prices 12/31/05 (years) Exercise Price

$1.76- 1.76 4,04¢ 2.3(C 1.7¢

4.04-5.43 4,600,07! 1.64 5.3€

6.20- 8.00 1,541,92! 2.0€ 6.92

6,146,04i 1.7t $ 5.7t

Outperform Stock Option Plan

In April 1998, the Company adopted an otitpen stock option ("OSO") program that was desitjge that the Company's stockholders
would receive a market return on their investmerioite OSO holders receive any return on their ogtidhe Company believes that the C
program aligns directly management's and stockinglld@erests by basing stock option value on them@any's ability to outperform the
market in general, as measured by the Standardo&P@FS&P") 500 Index. Participants in the OSOgream do not realize any value from
awards unless the Company's common stock priceedotms the S&P 500 Index during the life of thamgr When the stock price gain is
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greater than the corresponding gain on the S&PIB@Ex (or less than the corresponding loss on &f@ Bdex), the value received for
awards under the OSO plan is based on a formutdvimg a multiplier related to the level by whidet Company's common stock
outperforms the S&P 500 Index. To the extent thatdl 3's common stock outperforms the S&P 500 Inttexvalue of OSOs to a holder
may exceed the value of nonqualified stock options.

In August 2002, the Company modified thedd8ogram to target that no more than 25% of L&gbutperformance was delivered to
employee-owners, and that the exercise of pasfiante OSO grants does not exceed shares resaywexsfiance under the Company's 1995
Stock Plan, as amended. The following modificati@ifecting August 19, 2002 and later grants, weagle to the Plan:

. OSO targets are communicated in terms of numb&Ss rather than a theoretical dollar value.
. The success multiplier was reduced from eight tw.fo
. Awards will vest over 2 years and have a 4-year Hifty percent of the award will vest at the efidhe first year after grant,

with the remaining 50% vesting over the second Y&215% per quarter).
The mechanics for determining the fair eadd an individual OSO are described below:

The initial strike price, as determinedtbe day prior to the OSO grant date, is adjustest tine (the "Adjusted Strike Price"), until the
exercise date. The adjustment is an amount equlbétpercentage appreciation or depreciation irvéthge of the S&P 500 Index from the
date of grant to the date of exercise. The valub®fOSO increases for increasing levels of outperdnce. OSOs granted prior to August 19,
2002 have a multiplier range from zero to eightetefing upon the performance of Level 3 common stelzkive to the S&P 500 Index as
shown in the following table. OSOs granted Augu@st2002 and later have a multiplier range from zerfour depending upon the
performance of Level 3 common stock relative to384> 500 Index as shown in the following table.

Then the Pre-multiplier Gain Is
Multiplied by a Success Multiplier of:

If Level 3 Stock
Outperforms the

S&P 500 Index by: Pre August 19, 2002 Grants August 19, 2002 and Later Grants
0% or Less 0.00 0.00
More than 0% but Less  Outperformance percentage Outperformance percentage
than 11% multiplied by®8/ 11 multiplied by*/ 11
11% or More 8.00 4.00

The Pre-multiplier gain is the Level 3 coomstock price minus the Adjusted Strike Pricel@date of exercise.

Upon exercise of an OSO, the Company slediver or pay to the grantee the difference betwibe Fair Market Value of a share of
Level 3 common stock as of the day prior to thereige date, less the Adjusted Strike Price, theetEise Consideration”. The Exercise
Consideration may be paid in cash, Level 3 commocksor any combination of cash or Level 3 commimtls at the Company's discretion.
The number of shares of Level 3 common stock tddieered by the Company to the
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grantee is determined by dividing the Exercise @mration to be paid in Level 3 common stock byFag Market Value of a share of Level
3 Common stock as of the date prior to the exetdge. Fair Market Value is defined in the OSO agrent, but is currently the closing price
per share of Level 3 common stock on the NASDACherge.

OSO awards are granted quarterly to ekggarticipants.

Awards granted prior to August 19, 2002twe®qual quarterly installments over two yeard have a four-year life. OSOs granted
between March 1, 2001 and August 18, 2002 are mednle immediately upon vesting and have a four-jitsa

The fair value of the OSOs granted in 280& after was calculated by applying a modifieccBi&choles model with the assumptions
identified below. The Company uses a modified Bi&ckoles model due to the additional variablesireduo calculate the impact of the
success multiplier of the OSO program.

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

S&P 500 Expected Divider

Yield Rate 1.9% 1.50% 1.51%

Expected Life 2 year 2 year: 2 year:
S&P 500 Expected Volatilit

Rate 13% 15% 25%
Level 3 Common Stoc

Expected Volatility Rati 55% 56% 80%
Expected S&P 50

Correlation Facto .3C A8 A€
Calculated Theoretic:

Value 11€% 12(% 15€%

The fair value of each OSO grant equal#ieulated theoretical value multiplied by the &8 common stock price on the day prior to
the grant date.

As part of a comprehensive review of itsgdgerm compensation program, the Company temppsarspended awards of OSOs in
April 2005. During the second quarter of 2005, @wampany granted participants in the plan restristedk units, discussed below.

Beginning in the third quarter 2005, ther@any issued both restricted stock units and OS@mH of its long-term compensation
program. The Company plans to make annual gramesstricted stock units that vest ratably over fgesirs and plans to make quarterly OSO
grants to employees that have similar terms atli&®0s granted in the first quarter of 2005.

The fair value under SFAS No. 123 for theraximately 6 million, 5 million and 2 million OSCawarded to participants during the year
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respactivas approximately $18 million, $22 million angd@million, respectively. As of
December 31, 2005, the Company had not reflectadii®n of unamortized compensation expense iffiftancial statements for previously
granted OSOs.
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Transactions involving OSOs awarded arersarized in the table below. The Option Price Peit idientified in the table below
represents the initial strike price, as determioedhe day prior to the OSO grant date.

Weighted

Option Price Average
Units Per Unit Option Price
Balance December 31, 20 24,497,05 $ 2.45-%$113.8 $ 21.1¢
Options grante: 2,165,22. 4.90- 6.6! 5.4€
Options cancelle (172,88) 2.45- 113.8 4.8t
Options expiret (3,374,39)) 3.02- 113.8 56.9:
Options exercise (1,631,58) 2.45- 5.5! 4.17
Balance December 31, 20 21,483,41 2.45- 113.8 15.3¢
Options grante: 5,394,05I 2.59- 5.7 3.3¢€
Options cancelle (211,876 2.45- 113.8 4.8(
Options expiret (4,873,81) 3.02- 113.8 41.9¢
Options exercise (430,25¢) 2.45- 5.5! 3.64
Balance December 31, 20 21,361,52 2.45- 25.3: 6.61
Options grante: 5,859,06! 2.03- 3.3! 2.61
Options cancelle (1,048,49) 2.03- 253 3.0¢
Options expiret (11,841,49) 2.59- 25.3: 8.91
Options exercise (84,629 2.45- 3.0. 2.8¢
Balance December 31, 20 14,24597 $ 2.03- $6.60 $ 3.34
I | I
Options exercisabl¢
December 31, 200 18,948,04 $ 2.45-%$113.8 $ 16.5¢
December 31, 200 15,507,84 2.45- 25.3: 7.7
December 31, 200 8,453,291 $ 259- $6.6¢ $ 3.8¢
0OSOs Outstanding 0OSOs Exercisable
at December 31, 2005 at December 31, 2005
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Number Remaining Life Average Number Average
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding (years) Option Price Exercisable Option Price
$2.03- $3.02 7,369,74! 251 $ 2.5C 3,039,85! $ 2.8¢€
3.39-4.90 5,013,15 2.41 3.6¢ 3,550,36 3.7¢
5.16- 6.66 1,863,07: 1.5C 5.72 1,863,07: 5.72
14,245,97 232 % 3.3t 8,453,291 $ 3.8¢
I I I I

At December 31, 2005, based on the LewrBmon stock price and post-multiplier values,Glmenpany was not obligated to issue
shares for vested and exercisable OSOs as thenpegeeincrease in the S&P 500 Index exceeded tvepage increase in the Level 3 stock
price for all grants.

In July 2000, the Company adopted a coiblerbutperform stock option program, ("C-OSO")aamsextension of the existing OSO plan.
The program was a component of the Company's oggoin
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employee retention efforts and offered similar dieas to those of an OSO, but provided an employtrethe greater of the value of a single
share of the Company's common stock at exercigbgaralculated OSO value of a single OSO at the tf exercise.

C-0SO0 awards were made to eligible emplsysaployed on the date of the grant. The awards weide in September 2000,
December 2000, and September 2001. The awardsdran000 vested over three years as folldwsof each grant at the end of the first

year, a furthe?/ s at the end of the second year and the remaihisgn the third year. The September 2001 awards vestedual quarterly
installments over three years. Each award was iratedd exercisable upon vesting. Awards expired feears from the date of the grant.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company hlig &mortized the compensation expense in its fimgrstatements for C-OSOs awarded in
2000 and 2001. The final series of C-OSOs gramexiriployees expired in 2005. There are no C-OS@ oaistanding at December 31,
2005.

Transactions involving C-OSOs are summartzelow:

Weighted
Option Price Average
Units Per Unit Option Price

Balance December 31, 20 4,999,98! $ 3.82-$87.2! $ 17.4¢
Options cancelle (120,019 3.82- 87.2: 12.3¢
Options expire( (35,929 3.82- 87.2: 19.1¢
Options exercise (779,359 3.82- 87.2: 29.1¢
Balance December 31, 20 4,064,68: 3.82- 87.2: 15.3¢
Options cancelle (24,029 3.82- 87.2: 3.82
Options expiret (101,096 3.82- 87.2: 33.3¢
Options exercise (1,162,773 3.82- 87.2: 41.67
Balance December 31, 20 2,776,77! 3.82 3.82
Options cancelle — — —
Options expiret (137,98() 3.82 3.82
Options exercise (2,638,799 3.82 3.82
Balance December 31, 20 — 3 382 % 3.82

Options exercisabl¢
December 31, 20C 3,469,14. % 3.82-$87.2: % 17.3i
December 31, 200 2,776,77 3.82 3.82
December 31, 20C — — —

Restricted Stock and Units

In 2005, 2004 and 2003, approximately 24,800, 776,000 and 670,000 shares, respectivehgstificted stock or restricted stock units
were awarded to employees and non-employee merobtre Board of Directors. The restricted stocksiand shares were granted to the
recipients at no cost. Restrictions on transfesdagver one to four year periods. The fair valueesfricted stock units and shares awarded in
2005, 2004 and 2003 of $50 million, $2 million e@timillion, respectively, was calculated using ¥h&ue of the Level 3 common stock the
day prior to the award and is being
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amortized over the restriction lapse periods ofaWwards in accordance with FIN 28, "Accounting$oock Appreciation Rights and Other
Variable Stock Option or Award Plans". As of DecemB1, 2005, the Company had not reflected $29anitbf unamortized compensation
expense in its financial statements for the restlictock units and shares previously granted.

Shareworks and 401(k) Plans

Level 3 has designed its compensation pragrwith particular emphasis on equity-based ineemprograms. The Company had
developed two plans under its Shareworks prograemMatch Plan and the Grant Plan. In December 2@0#der to provide employees
opportunities to diversify their investments in Qmany-sponsored savings and retirement plans, thgp@oy decided to enhance the 401(k)
plan by introducing a Company match on employedritnrtions. At the same time the Company determihed, effective January 1, 2003,
the Shareworks Match Plan would be discontinuedtbad&hareworks Grant Plan would be rolled into4b#(k) plan.

Match Plan— The Match Plan was suspended on January 1, 20@38.t®this date, the Match Plan allowed eligibheptoyees to defer
between 1% and 7% of their eligible compensatiopuchase Level 3 common stock at the average stock for the quarter. Full time
employees of the communications business and nenf@irmation services businesses were considdigitlle on the first day of the calenc
quarter after their hire. The Company matched tliaeges purchased by the employee on a one-for-ais. [8tock purchased with payroll
deductions was fully vested. Stock purchased wighCQompany's matching contributions vested threesyafter the end of the quarter in
which it was made. Effective January 1, 2003, pastributions to the Match Plan continued to vieetyever, there will be no further
contributions to the Plan by employees or the Campa

The Company's quarterly matching contrifiutivas amortized to compensation expense overetsting period of 36 months.

As of December 31, 2005 the Company hdg &rhortized to compensation expense the valubefrtatching contributions and all
matching contributions were fully vested. During #econd quarter of 2005, the Company reversedili@mof non-cash expense in Europe
attributable to the discontinuance of certain gqoitmpensation programs.

Grant Plan— The Grant Plan enabled the Company to grant sludilssvel 3 common stock to eligible employees & th
Communications business and certain informationices businesses based upon a percentage of tHeye®g eligible salary up to a
maximum of 5%. Level 3 employees employed on Deaar3h of each year, who were age 21 or older witfiramum of 1,000 hours
credited service were considered eligible. Theeshgranted were valued at the fair market valus #%e last business day of the calendar
year. All prior and future grants vested immediatgbon the employee's third anniversary of joirting Shareworks Plan. All prior grants-
active employees were vested as of January 1, 2003vere transferred into the 401(k) plan. As dised below, the Company made
discretionary contributions into the 401(k) plan éach of the three years ended December 31, ZI¥iain foreign subsidiaries of the
information services business received cash payietieu of Level 3 common stock due to regulat@strictions.

401(k) Plan—The Company and its subsidiaries offer their digaliemployees the opportunity to participate mhefined contribution
retirement plan qualifying under the provisionsSeiction 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Eacpl@yee was eligible to contribute, on a
tax deferred basis, a
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portion of annual earnings generally not to exceb,000 in 2005. Effective January 1, 2003, the @amy began matching 100% of
employee contributions up to 7% of eligible earsing applicable regulatory limits for employeedh® communications businesses in the

form of Level 3 common stock.

Software Spectrum historically matched 2&5%mployee contributions up to 6% of eligible eéags or applicable regulatory limits; su
matching contributions were in cash. In April 20&éftware Spectrum increased this match to 50%nui@yee contributions up to 6% of
eligible earnings or applicable regulatory limitedeamended its 401(K) plan to provide for the miagglcontribution to be made in the form of
Level 3 common stock as described in the followpagagraph. In November 2004, the Company merge8dftevare Spectrum 401(k) plan

into the Company's 401(k) plan; however, the em@lagatch was not changed for Software Spectrum@yrepk.

The Company's matching contributions areenaith Level 3 common stock based on the closiogksprice on each pay date. The
employees are able to diversify the Company matetribution as soon as it is made, even if theynatefully vested. The Company's
matching contributions will be fully vested upomugletion of three years of service. For the yealedrDecember 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
the Company recorded as expense $15 million, $1lBbmand $15 million, respectively, relative to4®) plan matching contributions made

to employees.

The Company made a discretionary contrilouto the 401(k) plan in Level 3 common stock fog years ended December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003 equal to three percent, two percehtvao percent of eligible employees' eligible éags each year, respectively. The 2005
deposit is expected to be made into the emplopelkin in Level 3 common stock as of December 8042nd December 31, 2003, equal to
two and three percent of eligible employees' 20t# 2003 eligible earnings, respectively. The depasere made into the employees' 401(k)
accounts during the first quarter of the subseqyeat. Level 3 recorded an expense of $9 millighpfillion, and $11 million attributable to

the year's contribution in 2005, 2004 and 2003eetvely.

(17) Income Taxes

An analysis of the income tax benefit (ps@n) attributable to loss from continuing opesat before income taxes for the three years
ended December 31, 2005 follows:

2005 2004 2003

(dollars in millions)

Current:
United States Feder $ —  $ — $ —
State — (@D} (7
Foreign (8) (5) —
| | ®) (6) @)

Deferred, net of changes in valuation allowan

United States Feder — — 57
State — — —
Foreign — — —
— — 57
Income Tax Benefit (Provisior $ 8 % ® % 50
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During 2003, the Internal Revenue Servmmpleted an audit of the Company's 1996 and 19@&r#&b tax returns. The resolution of
these federal tax audits and other state tax igmirsrily related to its coal mining operationsuked in the Company reducing its deferred
tax liabilities and recording an income tax benefi$50 million in 2003.

The United States and foreign componentess from continuing operations before income saodows:

2005 2004 2003

(dollars in millions)

United State: $ (709 $ (279 $ (579
Foreign 24 (17¢) (182)

$ (679 $ (452 $ (759

A reconciliation of the actual income taeniefit (provision) and the tax computed by applytimg U.S. federal rate (35%) to the loss fi
continuing operations, before income taxes forthinee years ended December 31, 2005 follows:

2005 2004 2003

(dollars in millions)

Computed Tax Benefit at Statutory R $ 23t $ 156 $ 264
State Income Tax Bene' 22 15 18
Stock Option Plan Exercis: 3 (19 —
Taxes on Extinguishments of Convertible D — Q) (68)
Other (6) 33 51
Excess Book Net Operating Los¢ (259) (192 (215)
Income Tax Benefit (Provisiot $ 8 $ 6 $ 50
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The components of the net deferred taxtagkabilities) for the years ended December 3M3and 2004 were as follows and are
included in Other Liabilities on the consolidatedance sheets:

2005 2004

(dollars in millions)

Deferred Tax Asset:

Fixed asset $ 79C $ 802
Accrued payroll and related benef 29¢ 29¢
Investment in securitie 26 28
Accrued liabilities and deferred reven — 18
Investment in joint venture 82 83
Unutilized tax net operating loss 2,24¢ 1,84t
Other assets or liabilitie 45 53
Total Deferred Tax Asse 3,48¢ 3,122
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Accrued liabilities and deferred reven (207) —
Total Deferred Tax Liabilitie (107) —
Net Deferred Tax Assets before valuation allowz 3,381 3,122

Valuation Allowance Component

Net Deferred Tax Asse (3,30€) (3,047
Stockholders' Equity (primarily tax benefit fromtmm exercises (75) (75)
Net Nor-Current Deferred Tax Assets after Valuation Alloea $ — 3 —

Deferred income taxes are provided fortémeporary differences between the financial repgréind tax basis of the Company's assets
and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effectthe year in which the differences are expeata@verse. Net operating losses not utilized
be carried forward for 20 years to offset futureatale income. A valuation allowance has been rembatjainst deferred tax assets, as the
Company is unable to conclude under relevant adoaustandards that it is more likely than not theterred tax assets will be realizable.
The ultimate realization of deferred tax assetejgendent upon the generation of future taxablenmecduring the periods in which those
temporary differences become deductible. The Compansiders the scheduled reversal of deferredidghbitities, projected future taxable
income and tax planning strategies in making th&asment.

For federal income tax reporting purposies,Company has approximately $5.9 billion of netrating loss carryforwards, net of
previous carrybacks, available to offset futuresfaditaxable
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income. The net operating loss carryforwards exghireugh 2025 and are subject to examination byakeuthorities. The U.S. net operating
loss carryforwards expire as follows (dollars irlions):

Expiring December 31 Amount
2018 $ 3
2019 2
2020 66C
2021 97¢
2022 1,287
2023 1,001
2024 96¢
2025 1,024
$ 5,92¢
I

In addition, the Company has approxima$39 million of net operating loss carryforwards foreign locations, the majority of which
have no expiration period.

The Internal Revenue Code contains prorssishich may limit the net operating loss carryfards available to be used in any given
year upon the occurrence of certain events, inotudignificant changes in ownership interests. Chepany does not believe its |
operating loss carryforwards will be limited in 200r thereafter, based on information availablatime of this filing.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company haslauts to repatriate undistributed earnings ofifpresubsidiaries as any earnings are
deemed necessary to fund ongoing European opesaimhplanned expansion. Undistributed earnindsrefgn subsidiaries that are
permanently invested, and for which no deferreésehave been provided, amounted to approximatelyn$ltion and zero as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(18) Stockholders' Equity

During 2004, the Company's stockholders@gd a proposal at the Company's 2004 annual ngefeti the reservation of an additional
80 million shares of common stock under the Com[zat®95 Stock Plan.

During 2003, the Company issued approxilp&&6 million shares in exchange for approximat&ly007 billion aggregate principal
amount of long-term debt (See Note 14).

The Level 3 1995 Stock Plan permits optiofders to tender shares to the Company to cocenie taxes due on option exercises.
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Issuances of common stock, for sales, asitves, option exercises and acquisitions for linee years ended December 31, 2005 are
shown below.

Outstanding
Common Shares

December 31, 20C 443,556,86
Option, Shareworks and 401(k) Activi 14,021,13
Debt for Equity Exchanges and Conversi 42,464,77
Conversion of 9% Junior Convertible Subordinateded 173,611,06
Telverse Communications, Inc. Acquisiti 4,174,80

December 31, 20C 677,828,63
Option, Shareworks and 401(k) Activi 8,668,08

December 31, 20C 686,496,72
Option, Shareworks and 401(k) Activi 16,271,09
WilTel Communications Group, LLC Acquisitio 115,000,00

December 31, 20C 817,767,81

(19) Industry and Geographic Data

SFAS No. 131 "Disclosures about SegmensndEnterprise and Related Information” definesajiey segments as components of an
enterprise for which separate financial informai®available and which is evaluated regularly iy €Company's chief operating decision
maker, or decision making group, in deciding howaltocate resources and assess performance. Opesatiments are managed separately
and represent separate strategic business unitsfieadifferent products and serve different netsk The Company's reportable segments
include: communications; information services (itthg Software Spectrum); and coal mining (See Nyt®©ther primarily includes
California Private Transportation Company, L.Puigginvestments, and other corporate assets aarhead not attributable to a specific
segment.

Adjusted OIBDA, as defined by the Compatonsists of operating income (loss) before (1) éejption and amortization expense,
(2) stock-based compensation expense includedmsliing, general and administrative expensefierconsolidated statements of
operations and (3) any non-cash impairment costaded within restructuring and impairment experalkas reported on the consolidated
statements of operations. The Company excludek-staeed compensation due to the recording of neh-campensation expense under the
provisions of SFAS No. 123. Adjusted OIBDA is arpiontant part of the Company's internal reporting snan indicator of profitability and
operating performance used by the chief operatawgstbn maker or decision making group to evalpatdormance and allocate resources. It
is a commonly used indicator in the capital-inteesiommunications industry to analyze companietherbasis of operating performance
over time. Adjusted OIBDA is not intended to regneisnet income or cash flow for the periods presris not calculated consistently with
the commonly used metric "EBITDA", and is not recizgd under generally accepted accounting prinsifl@ AAP") but is used by
management to assess segment results and allesateces.
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The data presented in the following taletudes information for the twelve months ended@&msber 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 for all
statement of operations and cash flow informati@sented, and as of December 31, 2005 and 20@! foeilance sheet information
presented. Information related to the acquiredrmssies is included from their respective acquisitiates. Revenue and the related expenses
are attributed to countries based on where serdgiceprovided. Information for the years ended Dewer 31, 2004 and 2003 have been
revised due to discontinued operations (See Note 3)

Industry and geographic segment financifdrimation follows. Certain prior year informatibas been reclassified to conform to the
2005 presentation.

Information Coal
Communications Services Mining Other Total

(dollars in millions)

2005
Revenue
North America $ 1,4% $ 1,16t 74 $ — $ 2,73
Europe 14¢ 64¢ — — 79¢
Asia — 80 — — 80
$ 1,645 $ 1,89¢ 71 % — $ 361
| | | | |
Adjusted OIBDA:
North America $ 437 $ 22 16 $ (3)
Europe 21 14 — —
Asia — 2 — —
$ 45¢  $ 38 16 $ (3)
| | | |
Net Capital Expenditure:
North America $ 271 % 5 2 3 — 3 27¢
Europe 27 — — — 27
Asia — — — — —
$ 29¢ % 5 2 3 — $ 30t
| | | | |
Depreciation and Amortizatiol
North America $ 56C $ 10 5 % — $ 57t
Europe 82 — — — 82
Asia — — — — —
$ 64z $ 10 5 % — 3 657
| | | | |
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2004

Revenue
North America
Europe
Asia

Adjusted OIBDA:
North America
Europe
Asia

Net Capital Expenditure:
North America
Europe
Asia

Depreciation and Amortizatiol
North America
Europe
Asia

$ 1,546 $ 1,16¢ 91 $ — $ 2,80¢
13¢ 632 — — 771
— 63 — — 63
$ 1,68 $ 1,861 91 $ — $ 3,63
| | | | |
$ 45¢  $ 18 18 $ (1
4 10 — —
J— 2 J— J—
$ 46: $ 30 18 $ (1
| | | |
$ 24C $ 1 2 $ — $ 24z
30 — — — 30
$ 27C $ 1 2 $ — $ 21F
| | | | |
$ 571 $ 10 6 $ — $ 587
94 1 — — 95
$ 665 $ 11 6 $ — $ 682
| | | | |
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2003

Revenue
North America
Europe
Asia

Adjusted OIBDA:
North America
Europe
Asia

Net Capital Expenditure:
North America
Europe
Asia

Depreciation and Amortizatiol
North America
Europe
Asia

| dentifiable Assets
December 31, 200
North America
Europe
Asia

December 31, 200
North America
Europe
Asia

$ 1,80¢ $ 1,28 $ 80 $ — $ 317z
13¢€ 56E — — 703
1 71 — — 72
$ 1947 $ 1,92 $ 80 $ — $ 3,947
W ]
$ 73C $ 1 $ 17 $ (5)
5 ) — —
J— 1 J— J—
$ 73t $ 9 $ 17 $ (5)
" ]
$ 13t $ — 3 2 3 — 3 14C
13 — — — 13
$ 151 $ — $ 2 3 — 3 152
W ]
$ 70t $ 12 % 6 $ — % 728
87 3 — — a0
$ 79z % 15 $ 6 $ — % 813
W ]
Information
Communications Services Other Total
(dollars in millions)
$ 578t $ 581 $ 90 $ 857 $ 7,31
71€ 19C — 34 94(C
- 20 - 4 24
$ 6,501 $ 791 $ 90 $ 895 $ 8271
W ]
$ 490¢ $ 60C $ 84 $ 78t $ 6,37¢
90¢ 19¢ — 42 1,144
— 14 — 8 22
$ 581t $ 81C $ 84 $ 83t $ 7,54«
W ]
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Long-Lived Assets (excluding Goodwill)
December 31, 20C

North America $ 548: $ 80 $ 75 $ — $ 5,63¢
Europe 69¢€ 1 — — 697
Asia — 1 — — 1

$ 6,17¢ $ 82 $ 75 $ — $ 6,33¢

December 31, 200

North America $ 482¢ $ 11¢ % 66 $ — $ 5,00¢
Europe 85¢ 1 — — 86C
Asia — — — — —
$ 568: $ 12C $ 66 $ — $ 5,86¢
| | | | |
Goodwill
December 31, 200
North America $ 70 % 194 $ — 3 — 3 264
Europe — — — — —
Asia — — — — —

$ 70 $ 194 $ — 3 — 3 264

December 31, 20C

North America $ 71 $ 20z % — $ — $ 275
Europe — — — — —
Asia — — — — —

$ 71 % 202 $ — 3 — 3 278

Communications revenue is grouped intogluagtegories: 1) Core Services (including transpodtinfrastructure services, IP & data
services, voice services and Vyvx services) 2) O8wvices (including managed modem and relatdgnaxal compensation, DSL
aggregation, and Internet access services), aB8G)Master Services Agreement. This revenue reupstiructure represents a change from
prior year presentations to reflect how the Comfgamanagement will invest and manage cash flowlsdrcommunications business going
forward. Management believes this new product grayp
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provides more meaningful information to the reaofahe financial statements because each of thentev/groups has different expectations
with respect to future revenue performance.

Services
SBC Master
Services
Core Other Agreement Total

(dollars in millions)

Communications Revenue

2005
North America $ B8l $ 652 $ 25 $ 1,49¢
Europe 144 5 — 14¢
Other — — — —
$ 962 $ 65¢ $ 25 $ 1,64f
| | | |

2004
North America $ 664 $ 882 $ — $ 1,54¢
Europe 12¢ 10 — 13¢
Other — — — —
$ 798 $ 89z $ — $ 1,68t
| | | |

2003
North America $ 841 $ 967 $ — $ 1,80¢
Europe 12¢€ 12 — 13¢€
Other — 1 — 1

$ 967 $ 98C $ — $ 1,94

Transport and Infrastructure includes $&8lion, $107 million and $344 million of terminai revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectivel§& [rRita includes $1 million, $5 million and $2 mih of termination revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respeactivel

The majority of North American revenue dstssof services delivered within the United Staldse majority of European revenue
consists of services delivered within the Unitedddom but also includes France and Germany. Traasic revenue is allocated to Europe.
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The following information provides a recdiation of Net Income (Loss) to Adjusted OIBDA loperating segment, as defined by the
Company, for the years ended December 31, 200%, 200 2003:

2005

Net Income (Loss

(Income) Loss from Discontinued Operatic
Income Tax Provisio

Total Other (Income) Expen:

Operating Income (Los!

Non-Cash Impairment Char
Depreciation and Amortization Exper
Non-Cash Compensation Exper

Adjusted OIBDA

2004

Net Income (Loss

(Income) Loss from Discontinued Operatic
Income Tax Provisio

Total Other (Income) Expen:

Operating Income (Los!
Depreciation and Amortization Exper
Non-Cash Compensation Exper

Adjusted OIBDA

Information
Communications Services Coal Mining Other

(dollars in millions)

$ (720 $ 69 $ 6 % (9
— (49) — —

2 3 2 1

474 1 @ @)

(244) 24 11 ©)

9 — — —

64z 10 5 —

51 4 — —

$ 456 $ 38 $ 6 % (9

Information
Communications Services Coal Mining Other

(dollars in millions)

$ (509 $ 20 $ 1 $ 20
— 5 1 —

264 @ — (21)

(245) 18 12 1)

665 11 6 —

43 1 _ _

$ 462 $ 30 $ 18 $ (1)
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2003

Information
Communications Services Coal Mining Other

(dollars in millions)

Net Income (Loss $ (820) % (33 $ 16 $ 12¢
(Income) Loss from Discontinued Operatic (12 24 — —
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Princi — — 5) —
Income Tax Provision (Benefi — 1 — (52)
Total Other (Income) Expen: 697 2 — (80)
Operating Income (Los! (135) (10) 11 (5)
Depreciation and Amortization Exper 792 15 6 —
Non-Cash Compensation Exper 78 4 — —
Adjusted OIBDA $ 73E % 9 3 17 $ )

(20) Commitments, Contingencies and Other Items

In May 2001, Level 3 Communications, Iramd two of its subsidiaries were named as a defgrid®8auer, et. al. v. Level 3
Communications, LLC, et gla purported class action covering 22 statesq fih the U.S. District Court for the Southern Bétof Illinois. In
April 2002, the same plaintiffs filed a second mg&entical purported multi-state class actiorsiate court in Madison County, lllinois. In
July 2001, the Company was named as a defend&myile, et. al. v. Level 3 Communications, Inc.akt, a purported two state class action
filed in the U.S. District Court for the Districf tdaho. In September 2002, Level 3 Communicatith& was named as a defendanSimith
et al v. Sprint Communications Company, L.P., etalpurported nationwide class action filed in thdted States District Court for the
Northern District of lllinois. In April 2005, ther8ith plaintiffs filed a Fourth Amended Complaint izh did not include Level 3 as a par
thus ending Level 3's involvement in the Smith césé&ebruary 2005, Level 3 Communications, LLC wamed as a defendantNftDaniel,
et. al., v. Qwest Communications Corporation, et alpurported class action covering 10 states fildtle United States District Court for
Northern District of lllinois. These actions invelthe Company's right to install its fiber optibleanetwork in easements and r-of-ways
crossing the plaintiffs' land. In general, the Campobtained the rights to construct its netwodkfrrailroads, utilities, and others, and has
installed its network along the rights-of-way samged. Plaintiffs in the purported class actiorsedsthat they are the owners of lands over
which the company's fiber optic cable network pasaad that the railroads, utilities, and others whranted the Company the right to
construct and maintain its network did not haveldgal authority to do so. The complaints seek dpaan theories of trespass, unjust
enrichment and slander of title and property, aé agepunitive damages. The Company has also redeand may in the future receive,
claims and demands related to rights-of-way issiadar to the issues in these cases that may $edban similar or different legal theories.
To date, all adjudicated attempts to have classrastatus granted on complaints filed againsiGbepany or any of its subsidiaries
involving claims and demands related to rights-afywssues have been denied.

It is still too early for the Company taad a conclusion as to the ultimate outcome oftlaetions. However, management believes that
the Company and its subsidiaries have substargfahdes
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to the claims asserted in all of these actions @mdsimilar claims which may be named in the fefuand intends to defend them vigorously
if a satisfactory form of the settlement is not regwed.

The Company and its subsidiaries are attienany other legal proceedings. Managementuadithat any resulting liabilities for these
legal proceedings, beyond amounts reserved, wilimaderially affect the Company's financial coratitior future results of operations, but
could impact future cash flows.

Operating Leases

The Company is leasing rights-of-way, fitiels and other assets under various operating@seakich, in addition to rental payments,
may require payments for insurance, maintenancgepty taxes and other executory costs relateldetéetase. Certain leases provide for
adjustments in lease cost based upon adjustmetite tonsumer price index and increases in thddestid management costs.

The rights-of-way agreements have variogmration dates through 2030. Payments under thigheof-way agreements were
$30 million in 2005, $31 million in 2004 and $31liwin in 2003

The Company has obligations under naneelable operating leases for certain colocatiahoffice facilities, including lease obligatic
for which facility related restructuring chargesvbdeen recorded. The lease agreements have vawipiration dates through 2082. Rent
expense, including common area maintenance, urmrecancelable lease agreements was $78 millio005,2$91 million in 2004 and
$100 million in 2003.

For those leases involving communicatiasis@ation and right-of-way agreements, the Comparticipates that it will renew these
leases under option provisions contained in thed@mreements given the significant cost to re¢ottet Company's network and other
facilities.

Future minimum payments, including commuoeaamaintenance, for the next five years undett-adiway agreements and non-
cancelable operating leases consist of the follgwihDecember 31, 2005 (dollars in millions):

Right-of-Way Other
Agreements Facilities Assets Total
2006 $ 45 $ 101 % 2 $ 14¢
2007 45 97 2 144
2008 43 88 5 13€
2009 44 75 — 11¢
2010 43 66 — 10¢
Thereafte 66¢ 357 — 1,02t
Total $ 88t $ 784 % 9 $ 1,681

It is customary in Level 3's industriesus® various financial instruments in the normalrsewf business. These instruments include
items such as letters of credit. Letters of cradétconditional commitments issued on behalf ofdl&vin accordance with specified terms
conditions. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, L8Jwd outstanding letters of credit of approxirya$d.9 million and $26 million,
respectively, which are collateralized by cash aredreflected on the consolidated
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balance sheet as restricted cash. The Companyndoésglieve it is practicable to estimate the failue of the letters of credit and does not
believe exposure to loss is likely nor material.

Other

Level 3 receives certain mine managemeantcas from Peter Kiewit Sons', Inc. The expenseliese services was $5 million for 2005,
$6 million for 2004 and $5 million for 2003, andrecorded in selling, general and administrativeesmses. As of December 31, 2005 and
2004, the Company owed less than $1 million anchiflion, respectively for fourth quarter mine maeagent services.

For use in its business operations, the g2z owns leasehold interests in two corporateadirand since 1999 a 15% ownership
interest in an additional corporate aircraft, vilie remaining 85% ownership interest held by a@@ton that is controlled by Walter Scott,
Jr., a director of the Company. During 2005, iregatiated transaction with an unrelated third pattg Company obtained a continuing 15%
ownership interest in a replacement corporateafirar exchange for its 15% ownership intereshim aircraft surrendered in the transaction
and a payment of approximately $2 million. The ramimg 85% ownership interest was obtained by thpa@tion controlled by Mr. Scott,
which paid for its ownership interests separatelthe transaction.

(21) Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

As discussed in Note 14, in October 20@8;dl 3 Financing issued $500 million 10.75% Sehiotes due in 2011. These notes are
unsecured obligations of Level 3 Financing, howetray are also jointly and severally and fully amdtonditionally guaranteed on an
unsecured senior basis by Level 3 Communicatiows,dnd Level 3 Communications, LLC (a wholly-owrsedbsidiary). The 10.75% Senior
Notes were registered with the Securities and Bxgba&ommission in 200

In conjunction with the registration of th@.75% Senior Notes, the accompanying condensesbtidating financial information has
been prepared and presented pursuant to SEC ReguaK Rule 3-10 "Financial statements of guaresmtmd affiliates whose securities
collateralize an issue registered or being reg@st&rThis information is not intended to preset financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the individual companies or groupsahpanies in accordance with generally accepteodueting principles.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of @ipesafor the years ended December 31, 2005, 26642603 follow. Level 3
Communications, LLC leases equipment and certailfitias from other wholly-owned subsidiaries ofdat 3 Communications, Inc. These
transactions are eliminated in the consolidatedlt®sf the Company.
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

Revenue $ — $ — % 1451 $ 2,33t $ 179 $ 3,61
Costs and Expense

Cost of Revenu — — 57& 1,821 (163 2,23:

Depreciation and

Amortization — — 444 21% — 657

Selling, General and

Administrative 4 — 64C 283 (15) 912

Restructuring and Impairme

Charges — — 21 2 — 23

Total Costs and Expens 4 — 1,68( 2,31¢ (178) 3,82¢

Operating Income (Los! (4) — (223 15 — (212
Other Income (Loss), ne

Interest Incom 19 1 11 4 — 35

Interest Expens (390 (139 — () — (530

Interest Income (Expense)

Affiliates, net 784 527 (1,336 25 — —

Equity in Net Earnings

(Losses) of Subsidiarie (1,049 (1,499 (@D} — 2,541 —

Other Income (Expens 1 — 12 15 — 28

Other Income (Loss (639) (2,099 (1,319 37 2,541 (467)

Income (Loss) from Continuin
Operations Before Income
Taxes (63€) (1,097 (1,537 52 2,541 (679
Income Tax Expens — — — 8 — ©)
Income (Loss) from Continuin
Operations (63¢) (1,099 (1,539 44 2,541 (687)
Income (Loss) from
Discontinued Operatior — 49 — — — 49
Net Income (Loss $ (63¢) $ (1,049 $ (1,537) $ 4 % 2,541 % (63¢)
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2004

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

Revenue $ — $ — % 1,51< $ 2,41t $ (292 $ 3,631
Costs and Expense

Cost of Revenu — — 692 1,79( (274 2,20¢

Depreciation and

Amortization — — 42¢ 25¢ — 682

Selling, General and

Administrative 7 — 681 277 (18) 947

Restructuring and Impairme

Charges — — 6 10 — 16

Total Costs and Expens 7 — 1,802 2,33¢ (292) 3,85:

Operating Income (Los! (7 — (28¢) 79 — (21€)
Other Income (Loss), ne

Interest Incom — — 11 2 — 13

Interest Expens (40%) (612) (13 (6) — (48%)

Interest Income (Expense)

Affiliates, net 80¢ 39¢€ (1,20¢) 1 — —

Equity in Net Earnings

(Losses) of Subsidiarie (907) (1,249 (@D} — 2,151 —

Other Income (Expens 52 1 15C 33 — 23€

Other Income (Loss (451) (907) (2,059 30 2,151 (23€)

Income (Loss) from Continuin
Operations Before Income
Taxes (45€) (907) (1,347 10¢ 2,151 (452)
Income Tax Expens — — — (6) — (6)

Income (Loss) from Continuin

Operations (45¢) (907) (1,347 10z 2,151 (45¢)
Income (Loss) from

Discontinued Operatior — — — — — —

Net Income (Loss $ 459 $ (907) $ (1,347 $ 102 $ 2,151 $ (45€)
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2003

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

Revenue $ —$ — $ 1,761 $ 2511 % (331)$ 3,94%
Costs and Expense

Cost of Revenu — — 64¢ 1,871 (31%) 2,20¢

Depreciation and Amortizatic — — 45¢ 35¢ — 81:

Selling, General and

Administrative 39 — 573 432 (18 1,02;

Restructuring and Impairment

Charges — — 22 18 — 40

Total Costs and Expens 39 — 1,701 2,67 (331) 4,08¢

Operating Income (Los! (39 — 66 (16€) — (139
Other Income (Loss), ne

Interest Incomt 1 — 3 14 — 18

Interest Expens (439 (14 (39 (81) — (567)

Interest Income (Expense)

Affiliates, net 86¢€ 137 (1,029 25 — —

Equity in Net Earnings (Losse

of Subsidiarie: (949 (1,072) (24) — 2,04t —

Other Income (Expens (157) — @) 98 — (66)

Other Income (Loss (672) (949) (2,095 56 2,04t (615)

Income (Loss) from Continuing
Operations Before Income Tax (717) (949) (1,029 (110 2,04t (7549)
Income Tax Benefi — — — 50 — 50
Income (Loss) from Continuing
Operations and Cumulative Effe
of Change in Accounting Princip (717) (949) (1,029 (60) 2,04t (7049)
Income (Loss) from Discontinue:
Operations — — 12 (24) — (12
Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle — — — 5 — 5
Net Income (Loss $ (711 % (949 % (1,019 % (79 $ 2,045 $ (71))
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet§ Begember 31, 2005 and 2004 follow:

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Marketable securitie
Restricted cash and securit
Accounts receivable, n
Due from (to) affiliates
Other

Total Current Asset

Property, Plant and Equipment,
Marketable Securitie

Restricted Cash and Securit
Goodwill and Intangibles, n
Investment in Subsidiarie

Other Assets, ne

Total Assets

Liabilities and Stockholders'
Equity (Deficit)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Current portion of long-term
debt
Accrued payroll and employee
benefits
Accrued interes
Deferred revenu
Other

Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Debt, less current
portion

Deferred Revenu

Other Liabilities
Stockholders' Equity (Deficit

Total Liabilities and Stockholder:
Equity (Deficit)

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
December 31, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
$ 37$ 8% 27t $ 132 $ — $ 452
1732 3 — — — 17¢€
— 3 20 10 — 33
— — 84 74€ — 83C
10,117 4,615 (14,857 123 — —
16 4 29 137 — 18¢€
10,34: 4,631 (14,445 1,14¢ — 1,67
— 3,40¢ 2,22¢ — 5,63¢
234 — — — — 234
16 — — 56 — 72
_ — 85 44¢& — 53¢
(6,25)) (9,657 80z — 15,10( —
44 21 14 44 — 12¢&
$ 4,38¢ $ (4,999 $ (10,139 $ 3,92F $ 15,10( $ 8,277
¥ _____F ¥ ¥y __§F |
$ —$ 1% 141 $ 652 $ —$ 79
— — 46 50 — 96
83 18 — 1 — 10z
— — 13¢€ 12¢€ — 26€
1 2 50 124 — 177
84 21 37t 95t — 1,43t
4,722 1,23( — 71 — 6,02t
— — 63: 11¢% — 74¢
56 1 19¢€ 294 — 547
(476 (6,251) (11,339 2,49( 15,10 (476
$ 4,38¢ $ (4,999 $ (10,139 $ 3,92F $ 15,10( $ 8,277
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
December 31, 2004

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivaler  $ 3% 17 $ 24t $ 17¢ $ — $ 44z

Marketable securitie — — 22t — — 22t

Restricted cash and securit — 6 14 28 — 48

Accounts receivable, n — — 11z 42¢€ — 541

Due from (to) affiliates 9,16¢ 4,10( (13,299 24 — —

Other 13 4 26 10z — 14E
Total Current Asset 9,18¢ 4,12 (12,670 76C — 1,40z
Property, Plant and Equipmen
net — — 3,271 2,10 — 5,37
Marketable Securitie — — 114 — — 114
Restricted Cash and Securit 16 — — 51 — 67
Goodwill and Intangibles, n — — 13€ 321 — 457
Investment in Subsidiarie (5,457%) (8,360 1 — 13,81¢ —
Other Assets, n¢ 43 24 17 45 — 12¢
Total Assets $ 3,781 $ (4,209 $ (9,130 $ 3,281 % 13,81¢ $ 7,54«

Liabilities and Stockholders'

Equity (Deficit)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ — $ — $ 12C $ 48C $ — $ 60C
Current portion of long-terr
debt — — 26 117 — 14z
Accrued payroll and
employee benefit — — 53 25 — 78
Accrued interes 52 17 3 1 — 73
Deferred revenu — — 17z 81 — 258
Other 1 — 61 93 — 15k
Total Current Liabilities 53 17 43t 797 — 1,30z
Long-Term Debt, less current
portion 3,83¢ 1,23( — 1 —  5,06%
Deferred Revenu — — 707 13z — 84C
Other Liabilities 55 1 19¢ 23¢ — 49z
Stockholders' Equity (Deficit (157 (5,457%) (20,477 2,112 13,81¢ (157)

Total Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity (Deficit  $ 3,781 $ (4,209 $ (9,13 $ 3,281 $ 13,81¢ $ 7,54¢
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of €ashs for the years ended December 31, 2005, 26642603 follow:

Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing
Activities:
Proceeds from sale and
maturity of marketable
securities
Purchases of marketable
securities
Decrease (increase) in
restricted cash and securit
Capital expenditure
Investments and acquisitio
Proceeds from sale of propel
plant and equipment and oth
asset:

Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing
Activities:
Long-term debt borrowings,
net of issuance cos
Payments on long-term debt
including current portion (net
of restricted cast
Increase (decrease) due fron
affiliates, nel

Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Financing Activities

Net Cash Provided
Discontinued Operatior

Effect of Exchange Rates on Ci
and Cash Equivablen

Net Change in Cash and Ce
Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at
Beginning of Yea

Cash and Cash Equivalents at
of Year

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2005

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
(306) $ (126) $ 22€ $ 88 $ $ (120
243 — 34C 1 584
(64€) — — — (64€)
— 3 (6) (1) (4)
_ — (167) (13¢) (305)
(10) — (497) 12¢ (379
— — 3 8 11
(415) 3 (327) ) (749)
8717 — — 66 942
— — (26) (104) (130)
(122) 34 17¢C (83) —
75€ 34 144 (121) 81:¢
— 82 — (8) 74
1) — (13 () (17)
34 ) 30 (46) 9
3 17 24t 17¢ 443
37 $ 8% 27t $ 132 $ — $ 452
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Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing
Activities:
Proceeds from sale and
maturity of marketable
securities
Purchases of marketable
securities
Decrease (increase) in
restricted cash and securit
Capital expenditure
Acquisitions
Proceeds from sale of
property, plant and
equipment, and other ass

Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing
Activities:
Long-term debt borrowings,
net of issuance cos
Payments and repurchases
long-term debt, including
current portion (net of
restricted cast
Increase (decrease) in due
from affiliates, ne

Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Financing Activities

Net Cash Provided L
Discontinued Operatior
Effect of Exchange Rates on
Cash and Cash Equivalel

Net Change in Cash and Cz
Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents a
Beginning of Yea

Cash and Cash Equivalents a
End of Yeal

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2004

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
$ (379 $ (26)$ (30)$ 35¢ $ $ (77
= = 70 = 70
— — (410) — (410)
7 21 (4) ©) 21
— — (174 (99) (279
— — (69) — (69)
— — 9 61 70
7 21 (57¢) (41) (591)
272 713 — — 98t
(949) — (75) ©) (1,027
1,04¢ (706) 341 (684) —
372 7 26€ (687) (42)
— — — 6 6
2 — 5 11 18
2 2 (337) (359) (68€)
1 15 582 531 1,12¢
$ 3% 17 $ 24t $ 17€ $ $ 443
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Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing
Activities:
Decrease (increase) in
restricted cash and securiti¢
net
Capital expenditure
Investments and acquisitio
Proceeds from sale of
property, plant and
equipment, and other ass

Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing
Activities:
Long-term debt borrowings,
net of issuance cos
Payments and repurchases
long-term debt, including
current portion (net of
restricted cask
Stock options exercise
Increase (decrease) in due
from affiliates, ne

Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Financing Activities

Net Cash Provided
Discontinued Operatior
Effect of Exchange Rates on
Cash and Cash Equivalel

Net Change in Cash and Cz
Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents a
Beginning of Yea

Cash and Cash Equivalents a
End of Yeal

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2003

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Communications, Financing, Communications, Other
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

$ (347 $ — $ 131 $ 243 $ $ 27
26 (26) 4 5 9

— — (87) (66) (159

) — (109) — (111)

— — 26 77 10z

24 (26) (16€) 16 (152)

361 487 — — 84¢

— — (43) (729 (772)

3 o — - 3

(42) (46€) 63C (120 —

322 19 587 (849) 79

_ — 28 ©) 25

— — — 8 8

(1) 7) 58C (585) (13)

2 22 2 1,11¢ 1,142

$ 13 153 582 $ 531 % $ 1,12¢
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(22) Subsequent Events
Debt Exchange

On January 13, 2006, the Company completiedte exchange offers to exchange its outstan@ih®g5% Senior Notes due 2008, 11%
Senior Notes due 2008 and 10.5% Senior Discourgs\atie 2008 (together the "2008 Notes") that wele by eligible holders in a private
placement for cash and new 11.5% Senior Notes @dl@.Zhe Company issued $692 million aggregatecjpr@ amount of 11.5% Senior
Notes as well as paid $46 million of cash consitlenan exchange for the 2008 Notes tendered irtrnesactions. The Company also f
approximately $13 million in cash for total accrueterest to the closing date on the 2008 Notesthhd been accepted for exchange.

Pursuant to the guidance in EITF No. 96tth8,Company accounted for the exchange of thes%12enior Notes and the 11% Senior
Notes as an extinguishment of debt and expecctmgnize a gain of approximately $27 million in @tlncome in the first quarter of 20(
The gain was determined using the fair value ofnthe 11.5% Notes at the time of issuance. Thevidire of the 11.5% Senior Notes was
approximately $73 million less than the face amairnhe debt. This accretion to the face amourthefdebt will be reflected as interest
expense. The 11.5% Senior Notes will be recordéidedt fair value on the transaction date and agitrete to their face value at maturity.
Premiums paid to holders of the 9.125% Senior Natesthe 11% Senior Notes of $41 million were agphgainst the gain on
extinguishment of debt.

The exchange of the 10.5% Senior Discowieblwas accounted for as a modification of thetag debt. The premiums paid to the
holders of the 10.5% Senior Discount Notes of $lianiwill be added to the existing debt issuanosts and amortized over the term of the
11.5% Notes.

The principal amount of 2008 Notes tendeéseskt forth in the table below (dollars in mifig).

Aggregate
Principal
Amount
Outstanding Aggregate
Before Aggregate Principal Amount of Total Cash
Exchange Principal Amount Old Notes Premium
2008 Notes to be exchanged Offers Tendered to Remain Outstanding Payment
9.125% Senior Notes due 20 $ 954 $ 55¢ $ 39 $ 36
11% Senior Notes due 20 132 54 78 5
10.5% Senior Discount Notes due 2( 144 82 62 5

The exchange offers were made only to fiedlinstitutional buyers and institutional acctediinvestors inside the United Sates and to
certain non-U.S. investors located outside theadh$tates.

The 11.5% Senior Notes are senior unseaisbgations of the Company, ranking equal in righpayment with the old notes not
tendered in the exchange offers as well as allratberior unsecured obligations of the Company. Th&% Senior Notes will mature on
March 1, 2010, and will bear interest at a rategrmerum equal to 11.50%. Interest on the Notesbeilbayable on March 1 and September
each year, beginning on September 1, 2006. The @oynmay redeem some or all of the 11.5% Senior $\att@ny time on or after March 1,
2009, at 100% of their principal amount plus acdrimterest.

The 11.5% Senior Notes have not been ergidtunder the Securities Act of 1933, as amerataimay not be offered or sold in the
United States absent registration or an applicedkémption
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from registration requirements. Level 3 entered mtegistration rights agreement pursuant to whielill file an exchange offer registration
statement with the Securities and Exchange Comomsgith respect to the new notes.

Acquisition of Progress Telecom LLC

On January 26, 2006, Level 3 signed a definagreement to acquire all of the membershigrasts of Progress Telecom, LLC
("Progress Telecom"), a regional wholesale netvgerivices company based in St. Petersburg, FldPideyress Telecom, LLC is owned by
PT Holding, LLC which is jointly owned by ProgreSeergy, Inc. and Odyssey Telecorp, Inc. Under ¢he$ of the agreement, Level 3
expects to pay total consideration of $137 milliconsisting of $68.5 million in shares of Level 8fdmon Stock, pursuant to the terms of the
Registration Rights Agreement, and $68.5 millior@sh. The number of shares to be delivered witldtermined immediately prior to
closing. Progress Telecom's network spans 9,008smiiicludes 29 metro networks and connects tonat@nal cable landings in South
Florida and 31 mobile switching centers in the beast United States. Progress Telecom serves apyateky 200 customers with a
significant concentration of international and wess carrier customers. The Company expects theaction to close early in the second
quarter of 2006.

(23) Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

March June September December

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

(dollars in millions except per share data)

Revenue $ 99: % 877 $ 894 $ 90z $ 782 $ 821 $ 944 $ 1,037
Operating Income (Los! 27 (63 (65) (89 (84) (53 (90 (17)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operatic (77) (150 (18¢) (59 (204) a3 (21¢) (76)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatic — 3 — 4 — 2 49 (€D}
Net Income (Loss (77) (147) (18¢) (63) (209) ()] (169 (77)
Loss per Share (Basic

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operatic $ (0.1n$ (0.229% (©0.2D$ (0.09% ((0.29% (0.25% (0.3n%$ (0.1)

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operatic — — — — — — 0.07 —

Net Income (Loss $ (0.1n$% (0.299% (©0.2D$% (0.09% (0.29% (0.25% (0.29H% (0.1)

Loss per share was calculated for eaclethrenth period on a stand-alone basis. As a resstbck transactions during the periods, the
sum of the loss per share for the four quarteesagh year may not equal the loss per share fantslge month periods. As a result of
discontinued operations in 2005, certain amourdgsipusly included in the 2005 and 2004 quarterporés on Forms 10-Q have been
reclassified from continuing operations to disconéid operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Compeggognized a $49 million gain from the sale oj$tructure.

In the first quarter of 2005, the Compaegagnized $86 million and $40 million of terminaticevenue related to 360networks
(USA), Inc. and France Telecom Long Distance USIXCLrespectively. The Company also recognized $illffomin severance and related
charges as a result of a workforce reduction of@pmately 470 employees in the first quarter 0820
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In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Compeggognized a $50 million gain on extinguishmentdelit related to the repurchase of portions
of its outstanding notes due 2008. The Companyralsognized $103 million of termination revenue aecbrded lease impairment charges
of $14 million for leases in North America and Epeaduring the fourth quarter of 2004.

In the second quarter of 2004 the Compag $54 million to extinguish a capital lease oatign with Allegiance and recognized a g
of $147 million on the settlement.
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